
������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� Regeneration�Committee�

Date� Monday�16�December�2013�

Time� 10.30�am�

Place� Committee�Room�1,�City�Hall,�The�
Queen's�Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at�http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-
assembly/london-assembly/regeneration��
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�
past�meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
�
Gareth�Bacon�AM�(Chairman)�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
John�Biggs�AM�

James�Cleverly�AM�
Nicky�Gavron�AM�

�
A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chairman�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�

business�listed�below.�This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public.�There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�

induction�loops�are�available.�
Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Tuesday�10�December�2013�
Further�Information�
�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�Laura�Pelling,�Committee�Officer;�Telephone:�0207�983�5526;������������������������������
email:�laura.pelling@london.gov.uk�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�the�London�Assembly�External�Relations�team�on�020�7983�4283.�
�
If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�reports�please�contact�the�report�author�whose�details�are�
at�the�end�of�each�report.��
�
There�is�limited�underground�parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�
first-come�first-served�basis.��Please�contact�Facilities�Management�(020�7983�4750)�in�advance�if�
you�require�a�parking�space�or�further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Regeneration�Committee�
Monday�16�December�2013�
�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chairman's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chairman.�

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

Contact:��Laura�Pelling,�laura.pelling@london.gov.uk�,�020�7983�5526�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a)�� Note�the�list�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;�

�

(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�

Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and�

�

(c)���� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�

which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�

of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�

Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�

action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�
�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�58)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�

Committee�held�on�8�October�2013�to�be�signed�by�the�Chairman�as�a�correct�record.�
�

� The�appendices�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�9�to�57�are�attached�for�Members�and�officers�

only�but�are�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/regeneration�
�
�
�
�
�
�



�

4�
�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�59�-�62)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Laura�Pelling;�laura.pelling@london.gov.uk�;�020�7983�5526�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�completed�action�arising�from�a�

previous�meeting�of�the�Committee.��
�
�

5 Outer�London�Fund�(Pages�63�-�68)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Jo�Sloman;�jo.sloman@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4942�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�the�summary�of�the�Committee’s�site�visit�to�Deptford,�attached�at�

Appendix�1;�and�

�

(b) Note�report�and�the�discussion�with�invited�guests�regarding�the�Outer�

London�Fund.�
�
�

6 Regeneration�Committee�Work�Programme�(Pages�69�-�70)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Jo�Sloman;�jo.sloman@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4942�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to�agree�its�updated�work�programme�for�the�

remainder�of�the�Assembly�year�2013/14.�
�
�

7 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Regeneration�Committee�is�scheduled�for�Tuesday�28�January�2014�

at�10.00am�in�Committee�Room�5,�City�Hall.�
�
�

8 Any�Other�Business�the�Chairman�Considers�Urgent��
�
�
�



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v11/2013�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
16
December
2013�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�



2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

 

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� �
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Member,�LB�Havering;�Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�

London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Lewisham�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Harrow��
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

 

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications



4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�




Page 3



        

 

5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Laura�Pelling,�Committee�Officer�

Telephone:� 020�7983�5526�
E-mail:� laura.pelling@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 4



�
�

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


�

MINUTES


�

Meeting:
 Regeneration
Committee

Date:
 Tuesday
8
October
2013

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Committee
Room
5,
City
Hall,
The


Queen's
Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-
assembly/regeneration


�
Present:

�
Gareth�Bacon�(Chairman)�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�(Deputy�Chair)�
John�Biggs�
James�Cleverly�
Nicky�Gavron�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chairman's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1� There�were�no�apologies�for�absence.�





2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�




2.1� Resolved:





That
the
list
of
Assembly
Members’
appointments,
as
set
out
in
the
tables
at
Item


2,
be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests.







3 Minutes
(Item
3)�




3.1� Resolved:





That
the
minutes
of
the
meeting
held
on
26
June
2013
be
signed
by
the
Chairman


as
a
correct
record.



Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee

Tuesday
8
October
2013


�

�
�

4 Outer
London
Fund
(Item
4)�



4.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.��

�

4.2� Resolved:





(a) That
the
scope
of
the
discussion
on
the
Outer
London
Fund
scheduled
for
the


next
meeting
on
11
December
2013
be
agreed;
and





(b) That
the
14
November
2013
Committee
meeting
slot
be
used
to
conduct
a
site


visit
to
an
area(s)
in
receipt
of
support
from
the
Outer
London
Fund
to
inform


the
11
December
2013
meeting.






5 Regeneration
Committee
Work
Programme
(Item
5)�




5.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

5.2� Resolved:






 That
the
updated
work
programme
for
2013/14
be
noted.







6 London
Legacy
Development
Corporation
(Item
6)�




6.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

putting�questions�to�the�following�invited�guests:�

�

• Paul�Brickell,�Executive�Director�for�Regeneration�and�Community�Partnerships,�London�

Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC);�and�

�

• Neale�Coleman�CBE,�Deputy�Chairman,�LLDC,�and�Advisor�for�Olympic�and�Paralympic�

Legacy,�Greater�London�Authority.�

�

6.2� During�the�discussion,�the�Chairman�tabled�a�submission�by�the�LLDC�which�had�been�

circulated�to�the�Committee�in�advance�of�the�meeting.�The�submission�is�attached�as�

Appendix
1.�

�

6.3� During�the�discussion�Paul�Brickell�committed�to�provide�the�Committee�with�further�

information�on�LLDC’s�relationship�with�its�contractors�–�and�the�agencies�that�supply�its�

contractors�–�regarding�their�use�of�use�zero-hour�contracts.�

�

6.4� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�as�Appendix
2.


�

Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee

Tuesday
8
October
2013


�

�
�

6.5� Resolved:





(a) That
the
report
and
discussion
be
noted;





(b) That
the
London
Legacy
Development
Corporation’s
submission
be
noted;


and





(c)
 That
the
Chairman
write
to
guests
with
follow-up
questions
after
the


meeting
if
necessary.






7 Site
Visit
to
Nine
Elms
Vauxhall
(Item
7)�




7.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

7.2� Resolved:





That
the
summary
of
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
Nine
Elms
Vauxhall
on
25
July


2013
be
noted.






8 Queen
Elizabeth
Olympic
Park
Site
Visit
(Item
8)�




8.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

8.2� Resolved:





That
the
summary
of
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
the
Queen
Elizabeth
Olympic


Park
on
4
September
2013
be
noted.






9 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
9)�




9.1� The�Chairman�proposed�to�the�Committee�that�the�date�of�its�next�meeting�should�be�

rescheduled�in�order�to�ensure�that�the�most�appropriate�guests�were�able�to�attend�to�

answer�the�Committee’s�questions�on�the�allocation�of�the�Mayor’s�Outer�London�Fund.�

�

9.2� The�Committee�agreed�to�delegate�authority�to�the�Chairman,�in�consultation�with�

Committee�Members,�to�confirm�the�new�date�of�the�Committee’s�next�meeting.�

�

9.3 Resolved:






 That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chairman
in
consultation
with
Members
to


confirm
the
date
of
the
Committee’s
next
meeting.


Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

Regeneration
Committee

Tuesday
8
October
2013


�

�
�

10 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
10)�



10.1� There�was�no�other�business�the�Chair�considered�urgent.��





11 Close
of
Meeting�




11.1� The�meeting�ended�at�12.35pm.�





�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chairman� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 Camelia�Thomas,�Committee�Officer;�Telephone:�0207�983�4795;�E-Mail:�

camelia.thomas@london.gov.uk�
�

Page 8



London Assembly Regeneration Committee: Submission ahead of the appearance by 

London Legacy Development Corporation 

Contents 

1.0 Introduction 

2.0 Jobs and economic growth 

3.0 Transitional funding 

4.0 Fringe regeneration  

5.0 Governance: Legacy Corporation’s relationship with partners 

6.0 Housing 

7.0 Cultural legacy  

1.0 Introduction 

Just over one year ago, London delivered a fantastic Olympic and Paralympic Games and 

focus has now turned to delivering a meaningful legacy for east London. While it is too early 

to judge success - and legacy achievements will be measured over a period of ten years and 

more - Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park has already started to set the foundations for a bright 

future.  

The first areas of the Park recently opened to the public earlier than planned, including the 

north areas of the Park and Copper Box Arena. The Summer Series of events was an 

opportunity for over 700,000 visitors to return to the Park and recapture the Olympic and 

Paralympic buzz. The series highlighted the phenomenal appetite for events on the Park and 

provided a taste of things to come once it is fully open to the public in spring 2014.  

The 2012 Games exceeded all expectations and the Legacy Corporation is committed to 

building on the unexpected and continuing level of interest by maximising the opportunities 

available. Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park aims to set out an exciting and ambitious vision, 

aiming to build a new urban district. As well as creating employment and supply chain 

opportunities, the Park will secure extra visitors and extra investment through events, 

visitor attractions and the higher profile of the area. The Park will also offer housing and 

leisure facilities for the communities of east London.  

Progress has been promising; eight out of eight venues have secure long term futures and 

we are on track and on budget to complete remaining transformation work in the south of 

the Park.  

!""#$%&'()

Page 9



2.0 Jobs and economic growth 

2.1 Projections: 

Current plans envisage 8,000 new jobs on the Park (4,500 of which will be created through 

the iCITY deal for the Press and Broadcast Centres) and an extra 2,000 jobs created via the 

ensuing supply chain. There is capacity for another 25,000 in The International Quarter – the 

joint venture between LendLease and London Continental Railways based in the south of 

the Park. 

10,000 jobs have already been created by the Westfield Stratford City development along 

with approximately 2,000 construction jobs on the Park itself to complete transformation 

work.   

 2.2 Construction jobs: 

As outlined above at 2.1, by the end of transformation, some 2,000 jobs will have been 

provided on the Park and statistics show many local people have benefited. The most recent 

survey undertaken (July 2013) showed that of a total on site workforce of 1241, 40.9% of 

the workforce were local residents, 17.4% were previously unemployed, 62.4% were BAME, 

6.9% were women, 3.3%  were disabled and 5.1% of the workforce were apprentices. The 

Legacy Corporation also carried out a face to face survey on half of the on-site workforce, 

which showed that 85% of those local residents surveyed had been residents of their 

boroughs for at least one year.   

These figures exceed our targets and reflect our commitment to helping to secure job 

opportunities for local residents, with particular emphasis on those who were previously 

unemployed and under-represented groups. The only target not yet realised was that for 

disabled people. A challenge in the construction sector is encouraging workers to declare a 

disability. In order to address this, the Legacy Corporation has run an awareness campaign 

around this issue and encourages staff to report disabilities. 

2.3 Non construction jobs: 

The Legacy Corporation worked with Greenwich Leisure Ltd to support their recruitment for 

the Copper Box Arena, resulting in 58 job starts for residents of the Host Boroughs. This 

equates to 90% of the workforce against a target of 70%. Furthermore, of the intake, 45% 

are women, 14% are disabled and 62% are BAME.  A similar recruitment drive will take place 

for the Aquatics Centre, also operated by GLL.  

36 % of staff recruited by the Camden Society – the operator appointed to run Timber Lodge 

- are disabled people, 71% BAME and 43% are women. The Legacy Corporation organised a 

meeting between the Camden Society and the Borough Brokerages that took place in 

September 2013 to look at how the boroughs can support future recruitment, raise the 

Page 10



percentage of the 2013 workforce from the six Host Boroughs (currently 21%) and support 

local people into apprenticeships places, which are being recruited to later in the year.   

In July 2013, the overall Estates, Facilities and Management workforce was 164 people, 

made up of 59% residents from the Host Boroughs (against a target of 85%). 22% of the 

workforce were female (against a target of 42%), 6% were disabled people (against a target 

of 10%) and 47% were BAME (against a target of 35%). The Legacy Corporation is aiming to 

improve on these figures from November following the next recruitment drive.  

2.4 Our approach: 

In order to ensure that we achieve our aims, rigorous targets are set for our contractors and 

the Legacy Corporation works with local colleges and training providers to deliver pre-

apprenticeship and employment training where there are skills gaps thereby ensuring that 

local residents have the necessary skills required to access employment opportunities.  

This approach is set to continue in the future. For instance, as the iCITY development 

progresses, iCITY will work with all tenants to encourage recruitment from local 

communities. Job brokerage schemes and up-skilling of residents will continue to help local 

residents into such jobs.    

The Legacy Corporation is committed to offering apprenticeship opportunities and currently 

over 50 apprentices work on site. In addition, GLL have committed to recruiting 36 

apprentices over their ten year contract and Balfour Beatty Workplace have committed to 

50 over the lifetime of the Estates, Facilities and Management contract.  

3.0 Transitional funding 

The Legacy Corporation continues to work with GLA to source additional funding and is in 

ongoing discussions as to our delivery of a sustainable and viable business plan. As part of 

this we are looking to increase our income and cut our costs. We are confident that this will 

be agreed with GLA and the next step is our budget submission due on the 29
th

 November.

4.0 Fringe regeneration 

The Legacy Corporation is committed to connecting Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park to the 

surrounding areas to support our wider ambitions. Significant investment in transport 

infrastructure to the value of £6.5billion has taken place, yet a number of strategic projects 

remain crucial to the successful regeneration of the area. The Legacy Corporation is taking a 

lead to progress these projects as outlined below:  

4.1 Hackney Wick Station: 

The improvement of the Overground station at Hackney Wick is essential to support the 

new homes and jobs anticipated here and within East Wick and Sweetwater 

neighbourhoods on Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park, as well as iCITY. The Legacy Corporation 

Page 11



is leading work on the station design which has been approved by TfL and Network Rail and 

aims to be delivered on site during 2015 subject to funding. The Legacy Corporation applied 

to the LEP ‘Growing Places’ fund for a contribution towards the delivery of the project – this 

has been shortlisted and the final outcome will be announced in early October. 

4.2 A12 improvements: 

The Legacy Corporation is currently working closely with TfL to develop projects which will 

address the major East-West severance impact of the A12 in the Bromley-by-Bow area. This 

includes detailed work on Bow Roundabout, and assessment of the possibility of putting in 

new junctions and pedestrian crossings across the A12 around the station.  

4.3 Lea River Park: 

The Lea River Park project connects the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park to the River Thames 

with new continuous public parkland. The strategic first phase of this vision is the delivery of 

a linear park named the LeaWay which creates a continuous walking and cycling route along 

the River Lea and unlocks a number of key local routes between existing and new 

communities and businesses. The value of the completion of the LeaWay would also be in 

allowing - for the first time - a series of currently disconnected attractions to operate as a 

cohesive whole. This linear park will connect the major attractions in Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park, the unique heritage destinations at Trinity Bouy Wharf, Three Mills and East 

India Dock Basin, the nature reserve at Bow Ecology Park, the Royal Docks and onwards via 

the Cable Car to the O2. Not only will this offer appeal to residents of the neighbouring 

areas but also would have a London-wide impact.  

5.0  Governance: Legacy Corporation relationship with partners 

5.1 TfL: 

There has already been a huge £6.5billion investment in transport infrastructure for the 

Games, delivering a significant physical transport legacy in east London, including £200m 

invested in Stratford Regional Station and £10million invested in upgrading pedestrian and 

cycle routes to Olympic venues. 

Future investment in transport infrastructure will help to secure legacy benefits and unlock 

growth in the Park and wider area, therefore maintaining an effective relationship with TfL 

is imperative. 

An agreement has recently been reached for a regular schedule of meetings between the 

Legacy Corporation Chief Executive Dennis Hone and Sir Peter Hendy, Commissioner of TfL, 

which aim to focus on future transport investments that will support regeneration, including 

discussions on the Hackney Wick and Bromley by Bow developments as well as wider issues 

including bus routes across the Park.  

The Legacy Corporation and TfL worked closely together during the recent Summer Series 

held on Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park to ensure transport services supported the major 

Page 12



events programme and were successful in doing so. The Legacy Corporation is committed to 

maintaining that relationship to secure meaningful transport development across the Park.  

5.2 GLA: 

As a Mayoral Development Corporation, we comprise a part of the Greater London 

Authority family. Our work involves engagement across a number of teams within GLA and 

on a range of areas including schools, arts, volunteering, health and economy.  Covering this 

range of policy areas supports the Mayor’s work and by collaborating with GLA on our 

projects across the Park, we are supporting the delivery of convergence. This includes 

supporting the realisation of the economic potential of the Growth Boroughs area and 

helping to deliver significant improvements to the socio-economic conditions of local 

people.  

5.3 Relationship with Growth Boroughs: 

The Legacy Corporation has a clear policy of working with the Growth Boroughs to deliver a 

meaningful legacy for east London over the next ten years and to support their objectives of 

achieving Convergence. This includes a significant amount of day to day contact on a range 

of issues as well as more structured processes and formal representation of council leaders 

and mayors on our board.  

A key example of where there is a structured and formal engagement process is in the area 

of planning. Five borough members sit on the Planning Committee in order to ensure 

boroughs’ views are sufficiently considered. Our planning boundary was drawn up 

specifically to accommodate representations from Growth Boroughs following consultation 

and the fact that the boundary extends beyond the Park itself supports integration with 

wider communities. Our draft Local Plan, which outlines the planning policies that will guide 

future development within the Legacy Corporation area, is currently being finalised through 

on-going consultation with each of the four boroughs, the Lee Valley Regional Park 

Authority, GLA and TfL. 

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park legacy is focused on delivering real prospects for the East End 

and this is at the heart of our processes. It is not possible to achieve such regeneration in 

isolation and to ensure we maximise the benefits of our work for local communities we 

work in close partnership with local boroughs, including on specific collaborative projects.  

A case example is the E20 Stadium project; a joint venture between the Legacy Corporation 

and Newham Council. This venture manages the Stadium and its transformation to help 

secure jobs, support sport and education activity and ensure community access to the 

Stadium and the new 400m community track. 

Page 13



6.0 Housing 

6.1 East Village: 

The delivery of East Village, the former Athletes’ Village, as a residential development is the 

responsibility of the Olympic Delivery Authority but is a matter of huge importance to the 

Legacy Corporation.  

Post-Games retro fitting across East Village is substantially complete and the development is 

now in the final stages of handover. Testing and commissioning is underway - a very 

complex and detailed process. 

Triathlon Homes will own and manage 1,379 affordable homes available through shared 

ownership, intermediate rent and social rent. Residents from Growth Boroughs have priority 

for the homes available from Triathlon homes. Of the 704 homes available for intermediate 

rent and shared ownership, local residents will have priority. Get Living London will own and 

manage the remaining 1,439 private rental properties at East Village.  

6.2 Chobham Manor: 

Chobham Manor will be the first neighbourhood to develop on the Park with a focus on 

larger housing, designed to accommodate families. There will be 208 1-2 bed homes, of 

which 29 will be wheelchair accessible, 441 3 bed homes, of which 53 will be wheelchair 

accessible and 194 homes consisting of four bedrooms or more. The Legacy Corporation has 

worked closely with Taylor Wimpey to ensure that the neighbourhood has credible targets 

with regards to family housing and affordable housing targets. Resultantly, Chobham Manor 

will deliver over 70% family housing and 28% affordable housing.  

Building work for Chobham Manor will take place in three phases and each phase will take 

approximately two to two and a half years to construct. Phase one begins in early 2014 and 

each phase of development will consist of approximately 275 units.  

6.3 Accelerated housing: 

In July, the Mayor announced the accelerated delivery of two neighbourhoods on the Park: 

Sweetwater and East Wick. These developments will include 1,600 homes completed and 

fully occupied by 2023 rather than 2029 as originally planned. Residents in East Wick will 

begin to move in from 2016.  

7.0 Cultural legacy 

From the outset, Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park has included artworks as part of its 

architecture and landscape. For example, the delivery of artistic initiatives in Chobham 

Manor is written into the development agreement.  

Page 14



Arts and culture projects involving local communities will continue as the Park evolves, 

including poetry performances, a mobile artist studio, free workshops and talks, festivals 

and further art commissions to take their place throughout the Park, and in the surrounding 

areas.  

The Summer Series of events held on the Park included cultural events such as Open East 

Festival and the Mayor’s Liberty Festival. Open East Festival was an opportunity for both 

local and international artists to perform and other cultural elements such as international 

food stalls and storytelling pop up stands.  The Mayor’s London Liberty Festival showcased 

the talents of disabled artists and incorporated National Paralympic Day where Paralympic 

teams competed in sports such as wheelchair basketball, boccia and sitting volleyball.    

The Autumn Series of events currently underway on Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park offers 

further opportunities to showcase local groups. The weekend of August 28 and 29 marked 

the start of the local arts and culture programme in the north of the Park, with local groups 

hosting street theatre events. Other one off events will take place on the Park as part of the 

Autumn Series.  

Page 15



Hackney Wick 

London Legacy Development 

Corporation boundary

KEY

Borough boundaries

Stratford City

East Village

Stratford 

Leyton

Stratford

High Street

Bromley

By Bow

Carpenters 

Estate
Fish Island

Three Mills

Bromley 

by Bow

Sugar 

House

Lane

LB HACKNEY

LB WALTHAM 

FOREST

LB NEWHAM

LB TOWER HAMLETS

iCITY

VELOPARK

COPPER 

BOX

AQUATICS

STADIUM

HOCKEY 

CENTRE

East 

Wick

Sweet 

water

Chobham Manor

Pudding 

Mill

Marshgate 

Wharf

Page 16



 

Appendix 2 
�

Regeneration
Committee





8
October
2013





Transcript
of
Item
6:
London
Legacy
Development
Corporation


�




Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��I�now�turn�to�item�6,�which�is�the�main�item�on�the�agenda�for�

today.��Firstly,�can�I�welcome�Paul�Brickell,�who�is�the�Executive�Director�for�Regeneration�and�

Community�Partnerships�at�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�(LLDC),�and�also�

Neale�Coleman,�who�is�the�Deputy�Chairman�of�the�LLDC?��Welcome�to�you�both�and�thank�you�

for�giving�up�your�mornings�to�enlighten�us,�which�I�am�sure�you�will�do�with�your�customary�

aplomb.�

�

As�is�tradition�in�these�things,�the�Chairman�tends�to�take�the�first�question�to�open�it�out,�so�

the�question�that�we�would�like�to�explore�is�what�progress�you�have�made�to�date�with�the�

transition�from�the�Olympic�and�Paralympic�Park�to�a�new�town�in�the�heart�of�the�East�End.��I�

think�possibly�both�of�you�could�have�some�input�on�that,�so�we�will�start�with�you�first,�shall�

we,�Neale?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Obviously,�our�immediate�task�after�the�Olympic�Games�was�to�complete�the�

substantial�capital�work�programme�that�is�needed�to�transform�the�Park�as�a�whole�from�a�

place�where�we�could�host�the�Olympic�and�Paralympic�Games�to�give�us�the�foundation�for�

what�you�talk�about�in�terms�of�a�new�town.��But�fundamentally�to�make�sure�that�the�venues�

are�open�to�the�public�and�for�community�and�elite�use,�that�all�the�necessary�further�works�to�

connect�the�Park�to�its�surroundings�-�which�is�a�lot�of�work�in�terms�of�new�connections,�new�

bridges,�new�roads�-�is�complete,�and�to�complete�a�very�large�amount�of�landscaping�work�

there.�

�

We�wanted�to�do�that�while�also�trying�to�give�people�access�to�the�Park�as�quickly�as�possible.��

In�that�regard,�we�did�two�things.��One�was�to�put�on�a�very�ambitious�programme�of�events�in�

the�summer�including�a�major�anniversary�athletics�event�in�the�stadium�and�that�was�broadly�

welcomed�and�successful.��We�had�nearly�three�quarters�of�a�million�people�through�the�Park�for�

those�events.��The�other�thing�we�decided�to�do�was�to�try�to�open�the�northern�part�of�the�

Park�and�the�Copper�Box�Arena�in�advance�of�the�rest�of�the�Park,�and�they�opened�on�schedule�

in�July.�

�

I�am�pleased�to�say�that�the�Park�is�being�extremely�well�used.��I�think�in�September�we�had�

more�than�100,000�people�coming�to�the�Park.��There�has�been�a�great�welcome�for�the�terrific�

new�playground�we�have�opened�for�children�and�for�the�café�facility�we�have�put�in�there.��At�

the�Copper�Box�Arena,�we�have�had�more�people�joining�up�to�join�the�gym�than�anticipated�by�

quite�a�long�way.��We�have�had�a�whole�series�of�events�in�there,�big�boxing�events,�big�

basketball�events.��We�have�a�basketball�team�in�there.��We�have�a�netball�team�in�there.��We�

Page 17



 

have�a�handball�team�in�there.��So,�generally�speaking,�we�are�pleased�with�the�way�that�is�

going.�

�

Alongside�that,�we�managed�to�complete�two�very�important�pieces�of�business�in�terms�of�the�

venues�in�the�Park.��One�was�coming�to�an�agreement�with�West�Ham�United�that�they�would�

become�the�main�concessionaire�and�long-term�anchor�tenant�in�the�Olympic�Stadium.��I�am�

pleased�to�say�we�are�well�onsite�with�the�works�needed�to�convert�the�Stadium�now.�

�

The�other,�crucially,�was�the�deal�with�the�iCITY�consortium�and�with�British�Telecom�Sport�to�

make�sure�that�the�broadcast�centre�and�the�media�centre�had�the�future�that�particularly�the�

London�Borough�of�Hackney�has�been�arguing�for�for�many�years�as�a�real�focus�for�digital�

employment.��I�think�some�of�you�went�around�the�British�Telecom�(BT)�studio�and�they�have�

done�an�absolutely�incredible�job�there.��It�is�amazing�what�they�have�done�there.��We�have�also�

obviously�done�the�deal�for�Loughborough�University�to�move�in�there�starting�next�year.��We�

think�those�sorts�of�foundation�pieces�are�in�good�shape�and�now�I�think�we�need�to�look�

forward�to�the�future.�

�

There�are�probably�just�two�things�I�should�pick�out�now�at�the�risk�of�going�on�for�too�long.��

One�is�that�we�have�decided�that�we�want�to�try�and�accelerate�the�delivery�of�new�housing�in�

the�Park.��I�think�in�the�past�people�have�talked�about�a�very�long-term�programme�of�work�in�

the�Park�stretching�out�to�2030.��We�think,�given�both�the�overriding�need�for�more�housing�

and�the�opportunity�to�deliver�more�quickly,�that�we�should�proceed�more�quickly�with�that.��We�

have�come�forward�with�a�plan�to�develop�housing�on�the�west�side�of�the�Park�-�and�there�will�

be�1,600�new�homes�there�-�more�quickly�than�before�with�the�aim�of�making�sure�that�instead�

of�that�housing�being�delivered�and�finished�by�2029,�we�bring�that�date�forward�to�2023,�by�

about�six�years.�

�

Founded�on�the�actual�success�of�the�Olympic�Games�and�the�change�in�perception�of�the�

whole�area�that�the�Olympic�Games�brought,�the�great�connectivity�it�has�and�the�opportunity�

that�there�is�there,�we�have�started�to�look�again�-�and�I�think�this�again�will�have�been�touched�

on�by�Dennis�Hone�[Chief�Executive,�LLDC]�in�your�visit�to�the�Park�-�at�the�opportunity�

perhaps�to�rebalance�the�development�plans�for�the�Park�and�perhaps�to�look�at�a�greater�

element�of�economic�and�employment-related�uses,�particularly�in�the�south�of�the�Park.��

Necessarily�that�means�doing�slightly�less�housing,�although�I�think�it�is�in�the�scheme�of�things�

slightly�less,�but�we�think�there�are�some�opportunities�to�really�get�much�more�economic�

impact,�to�put�in�some�big�job�creators�there.��That�is�something�we�have�been�very�much�

encouraged�to�do�by�the�local�boroughs,�all�of�whom�want�us�to�look�at�maximising�the�

opportunities�for�economic�and�job�growth�and�new�opportunities�for�local�people.�

�

I�should�probably�stop�there.��That�is�a�sort�of�overview�of�actually�where�we�are�at�the�moment.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��Many�thanks�for�that.��Paul,�did�you�want�to�add�anything�to�

that?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��One�element�I�would�add�is�we�have�been�struck�by�and�encouraged�by�the�quality�of�

Page 18



 

the�relationships�that�are�forming�between�our�operators�and�managers�on�the�Park�and�the�

organisations�outside.��You�saw�a�bit�of�that�when�you�came,�really,�so�the�way�in�which�

Greenwich�Leisure�Ltd�(GLL)�and�the�Copper�Box�are�working�with�schools�and�community�

groups�outside�and�leading�them�into�activity�and�new�activity,��linking�them�with�the�clubs�and�

the�idea�that�some�of�those�kids�might�become�professionals.�

�

The�other�example�was�BT�Sport�where�they�have�-�and�I�think�you�saw�this�when�you�were�

there�-�this�idea�that�BT�Sport�had�been�talking�to�the�little�cafés�and�restaurants�in�

Hackney�Wick�and�have�the�idea�that�they�might�be�marketing,�or�are�marketing,�the�evening�

out,�which�is�that�you�are�in�the�studio�audience�but�you�go�for�your�meal�there�and�you�get�a�

boat�with�a�local�company�between�the�two.��I�think�that�is�really�encouraging.��They�have�really�

caught�hold�of�our�ambition�to�have�a�seamless�connection�not�just�physically�but�in�social,�

community,�but�also�business�terms�and�I�think�that�is�really�very�encouraging.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��I�am�just�wanting�to�ask�Neale�first.��I�absolutely�

welcome�what�you�have�said�because�I�have�been�a�visitor�to�the�Park�over�the�summer�and�it�is�

lovely.��There�is�a�great�buzz�there�because�it�is�a�fabulous�open�space.�

�

I�am�just�trying�to�understand.��How�should�we�be�looking�to�judge�success?��In�a�way,�the�Park,�

what�is�not�to�be�successful�about?��Fabulous�space,�well�managed.��If�that�continues,�that�is�a�

success.��But�that�is�only�one�aspect�of�the�whole�project.��How�will�we�be�able�to�judge�the�

economic�regeneration�of�the�area�and�when�should�we�start�to�look�for�success�markers?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think,�yes,�that�is�a�good�and�challenging�question.�You�are�right,�first�of�all,�

that�the�foundation�of�this�is�the�continued�successful�management�of�the�Park�and�the�venues.��

If�we�do�not�get�that�right,�we�will�be�in�a�mess,�and�we�do�have�some�challenges�there.��We�

have�to�particularly�get�the�Stadium�back�into�use�and�make�sure�that�we�run�a�whole�stream�of�

events�there�besides�football.��That�is�going,�I�think,�well.�

�

In�terms�of�the�broader�issues,�there�are�obviously�some�specifics.��I�think�I�would�pick�out�three�

things,�really.��One�is�we�want�to�get�some�big�attractors�committed�to�coming�onto�the�Park.��I�

think�people�will�know�that�we�are�in�discussions,�for�example,�with�University�College�London�

(UCL)�about�the�potential�for�them�perhaps�to�look�to�do�some�major�development�on�the�Park�

linked�to�how�they�see�their�future.��We�are�in�those�discussions.��They�continue.��We�hope�they�

will�be�successful.��But�nailing�one�or�two�of�those�sorts�of�discussions�is�very�important�and�I�

think�will�send�out�a�big�signal,�so�that�is�one�thing.�

�

Then�I�think�we�need�to�demonstrate�that�this�is�not�just�about�the�Park.��There�are�two�things�

about�that.��One�is�the�surrounding�areas�and�Paul�has�already�mentioned�Hackney�Wick�and�I�

think�we�have�some�exciting�plans�for�Hackney�Wick.��We�are�working�very�closely�with�the�local�

borough�there�to�bring�forward�regeneration,�to�improve�the�station,�to�link�it�into�the�Park,�

really�to�preserve�as�much�as�we�can�of�the�character�and�vibrancy�of�the�area�while�bringing�

forward�further�development�on�the�land�we�and�others�own�there.��Similarly,�down�in�the�south�

at�Three�Mills�and�Bromley-by-Bow,�we�really�want�to�crack�the�longstanding�problem�of�

creating�a�genuine�town�centre�down�there,�dealing�with�the�issues�of�increasing�connectivity�

Page 19



 

across�the�A12�and�trying�to�do�some�of�those�things.��There�is�another�big�issue�obviously�

around�the�future�of�the�Carpenters�Estate,�so�there�are�those�three�challenges�for�us�in�terms�

of�demonstrating�that�we�can�do�something�outside�our�area.��We�are�very�focused�on�that.��

Linked�with�that�obviously�is�the�work�that�is�being�done�around�social�and�employment�

initiatives�and�Paul�can�say�more�about�that.��I�think�a�lot�of�good�work�is�being�done�on�

apprenticeship�schemes,�on�employment�schemes,�work�with�schools�and�so�on.�

�

Finally,�the�third�thing,�there�is�a�bigger�ambition�here�and�it�is�the�ambition�around�the�concept�

in�the�Mayor’s�Plan�that�the�boroughs�attach�great�important�to�of�convergence,�which�is�a�

broader�ambition�for�the�whole�of�east�London�to�look�to�ways�in�which�we�can�over�time,�over�

a�20�to�25-year�period,�improve�the�quality�of�life�in�east�London�so�that�it�is�the�same�as�in�the�

rest�of�London�measured�by�a�range�of�indicators.��Development�here�and�in�Stratford,�we�think,�

can�play�a�very�central�role�in�helping�to�achieve�that.��The�way�that�convergence�agenda�goes�

and�the�way�in�which�development�in�this�area�contributes�to�that�is�another�important�way�in�

which�you�will�be�able�to�judge�the�success�or�failure�of�what�we�were�trying�to�do.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Thank�you.��It�is�just�that�this�is�something�that�we�

will�keep�referring�to�because�I�think�we�could�talk�more�about�the�relationship�with�the�growth�

boroughs.��For�instance,�you�talk�about�Hackney,�but�the�development�of�Hackney�Wick�and�

area�has�been�on�the�borough’s�agenda�and�everybody’s�agenda�for�the�last�20�years.��I�am�just�

trying�to�get�a�sense�of�the�additionality�that�we�are�going�to�get�in�that�area.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�agree�with�you.��It�has�been�around�for�a�long�time.��I�think�we�are�making�

some�real�progress�with�Hackney�Wick�now.��It�is�one�of�the�things�that�I�am,�frankly,�most�

pleased�about.��That�really�is�as�much�down�to�Hackney,�the�borough,�as�it�is�to�us.��They�are�

really�committed�to�working�with�us.��We�now�have�money.��We�have�finance�agreed�from�the�

London�Enterprise�Panel�and�from�other�sources�to�do�the�improvements�at�Hackney�Wick�

Station�that�the�borough�has�been�looking�for�for�a�long�time,�to�do�the�underpass�under�there,�

to�extend�the�platforms�so�we�can�get�them�much�closer�to�the�Park.��Also,�the�iCITY�

development�gives�us�a�very�real�opportunity,�I�think,�to�spread�some�of�the�economic�uses�that�

are�there�over�the�water�into�Hackney�Wick.��Certainly�the�people�at�iCITY�are�very�committed�to�

doing�that.��Paul�has�already�talked�about�the�BT�Sports�supply�chain.��We�are�going�to�do�the�

same�with�the�Loughborough�supply�chain.��We�can�create�some�real�opportunities�for�people�

who�are�in�Hackney�Wick�to�contribute�to�that.�

�

We�have�also�had�a�load�of�really�good�discussions�led�by�the�design�team�of�LLDC�with�some�of�

the�small�businesses,�with�some�of�the�restaurants�and�cafés,�with�some�of�the�artists�and�

gallery�owners�in�Hackney�Wick�about�how�we�can�use�both�our�planning�policy�and�other�tools�

to�make�sure�that�we�retain�what�is�most�exciting�about�the�area.��It�is�a�difficult�balance�

because�obviously�we�are�getting�development�pressure�in�there�now.��We�need�to�make�sure�

we�get�the�right�sort�of�development�there�and�we�do�not�ruin�the�area.��We�have�done�a�lot�of�

work�there.��There�are�more�artists�per�square�foot�in�this�little�square�in�Hackney�Wick�than�

there�are�in�any�other�part�of�Europe�and�we�need�to�make�sure�that�we�build�on�that�strength�

and�that�we�do�not�lose�it.�

�

Page 20



 

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Thank�you.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Yes,�I�wanted�to�punch�the�bruise,�if�you�like.��Obviously,�I�have�an�interest�

because�my�constituency�contains�most�of�the�Olympic�Park.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Not�all.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��There�is�a�very�small�part�of�the�Olympic�Park.��There�is�a�significant�part�in�

Jennette’s�constituency.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):
�You�just�heard�about�the�important�bit.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Anyway,�it�is�not�about�a�competition�for�that,�but�obviously�it�is�about�the�

underlying�objectives�behind�the�Olympic�Games.��You�have�said�all�the�right�things,�Neale,�

about�convergence�and�about�integrating�and�about�raising�quality�of�life�across�the�wider�area�

and�the�implicit�stuff�about�cliff�edges�and�all�that�sort�of�stuff.��However,�when�I�read�your�

board�papers�and�I�look�at�your�business�plan,�it�is�overwhelmingly�about�the�Park,�the�nice�

parklands�and�the�venues�and�very�underwhelmingly�about�the�wider�integration�in�the�wider�

communities.�

�

I�suppose�my�key�question�is:�when�the�Olympic�Games�were�bid�for,�one�of�the�most�attractive�

parts�of�the�bid�was�about�the�regeneration�of�east�London�and�everyone�repeats�the�same�

mantra�about�that�being�so�important.��How�do�you�make�sure�at�the�LLDC�that�you�do�not�get�

diverted�by�the�very�worthy�and�important�job�of�getting�the�Park�running�from�the�bigger�

picture�about�how�everything�you�do�integrates�the�wider�regeneration�and�improving�the�

quality�of�life�for�local�people?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Our�board�papers�may�give�that�impression.��I�do�think�it�is�a�false�impression.��

Certainly�the�great�bulk�of�the�energy�that�is�going�into�the�organisation�at�the�moment�is�not�

so�much�going�into�the�Park�and�the�venues.��I�think�the�Stadium�is�a�big�test�for�us.��We�need�

to�get�that�right.��But�we�are�trying�to�get�into�almost�business-as-usual�there.��Most�of�what�

we�do�and�most�of�the�energy�in�the�board�and�elsewhere�is�absolutely�focused�on�these�

broader�regeneration�issues.�

�

There�is�always�this�very�difficult�balance�in�regeneration�between�creating�new�opportunities�

and�inevitably�increasing�land�value,�and�making�sure�that�you�are�not�leaving�the�existing�

people�in�the�area�behind,�that�it�is�meaningful�for�them�and�that�you�are�genuinely�creating�the�

opportunities�for�them.��It�is�not�an�easy�problem�and�not�one�where�I�think�anyone�has�come�

up�with�a�perfect�solution.�

�

However,�if�you�look�at�the�area�and�what�we�are�trying�to�do�in�terms�of�the�broader�

regeneration�of�east�London,�the�fundamental�objective�has�been�in�the�London�Plan�right�from�

the�very�first�London�Plan�and�carried�on�through�all�iterations�of�the�London�Plan.��It�is�that�

the�centre�of�Stratford�should�become�a�huge�new�metropolitan�centre�for�London.��I�think�we�

are�making�very�good�progress�with�that.��We�have�the�fantastic�connectivity.��We�have�Crossrail�

Page 21



 

coming�in.��We�have�retail�development�there.��We�desperately�want�to�see�the�commercial�

development�come�forward�on�the�International�Quarter,�which�will�be�a�really�big�job�generator�

there.��One�of�the�things�we�are�now�trying�to�do�absolutely�is�to�try�to�spread�that,�particularly�

the�employment�growth,�right�into�the�heart�of�the�Park,�both�on�the�waterfront�site�and�on�the�

site�to�the�south�of�the�Orbit,�where�we�think�we�could�see�employment�uses�rather�than�

residential�uses.��I�think�all�that�is�fundamentally�about�regeneration�and�about�new�jobs.�

�

Equally,�we�are�spending�a�lot�of�time�on�Hackney�Wick,�a�lot�of�time�on�Three�Mills,�which�are�

complex�and�difficult�regeneration�issues.��We�are�working�closely�with�the�boroughs�and�other�

stakeholders�and,�if�necessary,�we�have�powers�we�can�use.��We�have�our�planning�policy.��If�

necessary,�we�have�our�compulsory�purchase�powers.��We�are�very�focused�indeed�on�that�work�

as�well�as�on�the�work�in�the�Park�itself.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�have�just�one�quick�supplementary.��We�have�some�more�detailed�

questions�later�on,�so�I�was�looking�at�a�high-level�answer�to�this.��Average�household�incomes�

in�my�constituency�are�amongst�the�lowest�in�London.��When�they�look�at�the�signals�in�the�

sales�bumph�and�in�the�media,�they�get�a�very�clear�signal�about�the�Olympic�housing�-�and�I�

will�ask�a�more�detailed�question�later�on�-�that�it�is�not�for�them�and�that�it�is�unaffordable.��

This�bloke�I�know�who�may�work�in�this�building�was�quite�interested�in�looking�at�the�

affordable�housing�and�he�looked�at�the�rent�levels�and�said,�“Whoa.��It�is�not�going�to�work�for�

me”.��He�is�a�local�bloke,�he�lives�in�Stratford�and�it�is�out�of�his�reach.��Regardless�of�the�

intentions,�the�signal�is�given�that�it�is�a�different�product�and�it�is�not�really�for�local�people.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�do�not�really�understand�that�because,�if�you�look�at�the�housing�that�has�

been�built,�the�big�housing�development�that�has�been�built�is�obviously�the�Olympic�Village�

and�East�Village.��While�half�of�that�housing�is�being�offered�at�market�rents,�which�I�agree�are�

probably�outside�the�range�of�a�lot�of�local�people,�half�of�that�is�affordable�housing�and�all�the�

rented�housing�in�that�is�at�target�rents.��It�is�not�at�affordable�rents.��So�it�is�well�within�the�

grasp�of�people�on�low�incomes.�

�

Similarly,�the�planning�consent�that�we�have�for�the�rest�of�the�housing�in�the�Park�does�provide�

for�more�housing�to�be�provided�at�target�rents�as�well�as�at�affordable�rents�and�has�some�quite�

stringent�elements�in�it�to�ensure�that�where�we�are�talking�about�affordable�rents,�particularly�

for�larger�units,�we�are�talking�about�much�closer�to�40%�of�market�rent�than�a�higher�level.��

Again,�I�think�those�homes�will�be�affordable.��One�of�the�things�we�are�placing�an�awful�lot�of�

stress�on�both�in�our�development�at�Chobham�and�in�the�development�we�are�trying�to�bring�

forward�on�the�other�side�of�the�Park�is�to�increase�the�amount�of�family�housing,�to�increase�

the�amount�of�traditional�houses�and�to�make�sure�that�the�target�rent�and�affordable�element�

also�has�a�lot�of�that�type�of�unit�in�it.�

�

You�have�to�remember�we�are�talking�here�about�contributing�perhaps�in�the�long�term�7,000�or�

8,000�homes.��That�is�not�going�to�solve�east�London’s�housing�problems�or�London’s�housing�

problems.�

�

Page 22



 

John
Biggs
(AM):��We�are�going�to�explore�this�in�greater�detail�later�on.��I�am�more�interested�

at�this�point�in�the�signal�that�is�given,�given�the�objectives�that�lay�behind�the�Olympic�Games.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think�the�signal�that�we�have�given�is,�as�I�say,�the�fact�that�we�have�the�

biggest�single�housing�development�in�the�area�that�is�there�now,��it�is�about�to�be�let�now�and�

all�the�rented�housing�is�at�target�rents,�so�it�is�not�at�all�outside�the�reach�of�people�on�low�

incomes.��We�have�preserved�in�our�planning�consent�continued�provision�of�housing�at�those�

rents�and�looked�to�restrict�the�rental�levels�for�the�affordable�rent�product�to�something�that�

will�be�affordable,�particularly�with�the�larger�units.��I�think�that�sends�out�a�signal�that,�insofar�

as�we�can,�we�are�at�least�very�conscious�of�the�issues�around�affordability.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Thank�you�very�much�for�indulging�me,�Chair.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��It�is�always�a�pleasure�to�indulge�you,�John.��Moving�on�to�the�

thorny�subject�of�finances,�how�confident�are�you�that�with�the�current�funding�that�is�in�place�

you�can�deliver�the�regeneration�schemes�that�you�just�talked�about?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��This�is�a�challenge�for�us�as�it�is,�I�think,�for�all�public�sector�agencies�at�the�

moment�in�that�we�are�going�to�have�to�do�more�with�less.��We�recognise�that�and�that�is�

something�we�are�working�through�at�the�moment.��We�think�the�overall�economics�of�the�Park�

and�the�development�we�are�looking�to�do�over�time�is�to�try�and�ensure�that�we�work�our�way�

towards�the�Park�becoming�self-sustaining.��We�think�that�has�to�be�our�objective�and�we�also�

think�it�is�doable.�

�

In�practice,�parks�do�not�normally�operate�without�revenue�support�and�we�have�in�place�an�

underpinning�commitment�at�the�moment�from�the�Mayor�to�provide�at�least�£10�million�a�year�

towards�our�revenue�costs.��I�think�over�the�next�four,�five�or�six�years�we�will�reduce�our�

requirement�for�revenue�support�significantly.��However,�in�the�shorter�and�medium�term,�we�

will�need�to�look�for�further�support�and�to�make�sure�that�we�can,�at�the�same�time,�both�

reduce�our�costs�and�increase�our�income.��We�are�doing�that.��We�are�doing�that�across�the�

board,�but�we�are�being�careful�to�make�sure�that�we�do�not�compromise�the�major�regeneration�

programmes�and�initiatives�that�we�are�doing.�

�

I�think�Paul�might�want�to�say�something�about�this,�both�because�I�am�talking�too�much�and�

also�because�one�of�the�things�which�he�does�in�terms�of�taking�charge�of�those�regeneration�

programmes�is�to�have�quite�a�big�emphasis�on�how�you�can�make�them�more�sustainable�

without�constantly�needing�to�draw�in�money�from�them.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):����Certainly�on�the�social-economic�development�programmes�that�we�have�-�we�might�

talk�more�about�jobs�in�a�minute,�and�I�will�glide�over�it�-�one�of�the�things�we�have�done�with�

the�apprenticeship�programme�in�construction�is�invent�something�with�REDS10,�our�partners,�

and�BAM�Nuttall,�which�is�quite�new�and�means�that�for�the�first�time�we�are�seeing�significant�

numbers�of�young�people�in�east�London�coming�through�for�apprenticeships�in�the�

Page 23



 

construction�industry�and�going�out�and�being�ambassadors�for�that.��Actually,�we�have�invested�

in�that�but�we�cannot�go�on�investing�in�that�because�we�will�not�be�there�forever.��However,�

what�has�been�very�encouraging�is�that�it�has�worked�so�well,�that�it�has�been�taken�on�by�our�

development�partner,�Taylor�Wimpey,�in�the�next�phase�as�part�of�their�offer�to�us.��They�came�

in�and�bid�that�and�we�will�not�have�to�pay�any�more�for�that,�so�we�have�grounded�that�

approach�to�apprenticeships�in�the�construction�business�in�the�next�set�of�contracts.��I�know�

that�there�are�other�people�across�east�London�and�across�London�in�general�who�are�also�

adopting�that�same�model.��I�think�actually�it�is�not�only�that�we�are�trying�to�embed�in�that�

case�an�initiative�and�mainstream�it,�if�you�like,�but�actually�we�are�also�trying�to�prove�a�

principle�so�that�other�people�across�the�capital�catch�on.�

�

I�think�of�a�number�of�our�sports�programmes�and�the�programme�of�disability�sports.��Again,��

our�job�is�to�be�a�development�corporation,�to�develop�ideas�and�to�develop�relationships�and�

then�leave�those�with�those�operators�who�come�after�us�to�continue�with�those�things.��I�think�

we�see�ourselves�as�promoting�development,�not�just�in�terms�of�building�things,�but�in�terms�of�

new�ways�of�working,�new�sets�of�relationships�that�will�carry�on�without�us�having�to�

continually�provide�it�with�money.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��The�business�plan�assumes�quite�a�large�drop-off�in�2015/16�to�

generate�around�about�£9.5�million.��In�your�answer�just�now,�Neale,�you�talked�about�the�Park�

becoming�self-sustaining�in�five�to�six�years’�time,�which�obviously�is�beyond�that�point.��What�

measures�are�likely�to�be�in�train�in�terms�of�both�increasing�income�and�decreasing�cost�

between�2015/16�and�the�Park�becoming�self-sustaining�in�five�or�six�years�if�that�is�it?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��One�thing�that�presents�us�with�a�little�bit�of�a�problem�at�the�moment�in�terms�

of�looking�too�far�ahead�is�that�I�talked�earlier�about�running�the�Park,�becoming�business-as-

usual�and�whatever,�but�we�are�only�at�the�first�stage�of�that.��We�have�not�taken�over�the�

whole�of�the�South�Park�yet.��For�example,�we�have�an�ambitious�business�plan�for�the�Olympic�

Stadium,�which�requires�us�to�get�substantial�income�in�from�a�range�of�sources�for�naming�

rights,�catering�and�the�like.��To�an�extent,�obviously�none�of�those�things�are�nailed�down�and�

we�are�at�risk�on�all�of�those�and�we�have�to�achieve�those.�

�

I�think�we�can�do�that,�but�those�are�challenges�and�we�have�to�be�successful�in�increasing�our�

income�and�meeting�the�targets�we�have�set�ourselves�for�income�from�the�Park.��We�are�

looking�to�procure�over�the�next�12�months�an�operator�to�run�the�South�Park�and�the�Olympic�

Stadium.��That�is�a�very�important�piece�of�procurement�for�us�to�try�to�make�sure�that�we�get�

someone�in�who�can�work�with�us�to�maximise�commercial�opportunities�and�to�bring�in�more�

money.��Equally,�as�we�develop�housing�and�as�we�develop�commercial�space�on�the�Park,�we�

are�looking�to�bring�in�income�from�that�in�the�form�of�ground�rents�and�estate�service�charges.��

Particularly,�as�development�increases,�our�income�increases.�

�

We�also�hope�that�over�time�our�costs�can�be�brought�down�further.��Inevitably,�they�are�going�

to�be�at�their�highest�when�we�begin�to�open�the�Park.��Just�to�give�you�one�example,�we�are�

budgeting�for�quite�a�significant�spend�on�security�in�the�Park�in�the�early�years�and�that�is�

because�we�think�it�is�absolutely�vital�the�Park�is�seen�as�a�very�safe�place�to�come.��That�is�

Page 24



 

certainly�how�it�works�at�the�moment.��We�are�paying�money�to�the�police�and�we�have�our�own�

security�people�there�and�it�means�that�at�the�moment�I�think�it�is�working�very�well.��If�the�Park�

were�not�to�be�perceived�as�a�safe�place,�that�would�be�fatal�for�its�future.��We�are,�for�example,�

putting�in�more�CCTV�over�time�and�I�think�we�are�looking�again�over�the�period�to�2015/16�

and�2016/17�to�quite�sharply�reduce�the�amount�of�money�we�would�spend�on�security�in�terms�

of�the�physical�presence�onsite.��Again,�that�is�something�we�will�have�to�judge�as�we�go�along.�

�

From�a�combination�of�a�very�commercial�approach�to�our�venues�and�to�the�Park�which�I�think�

we�have�to�take,�through�to�looking�sharply�at�our�costs�and�particularly�from�new�sources�of�

income�from�development�on�the�Park,�that�is�the�way�in�which�we�do�project�over�time�and�we�

want�to�do�it�as�early�as�we�can.��If�you�ask�me�the�earliest�possible�year�we�could�perhaps�look�

to�do�this,�I�suppose�I�would�be�thinking�more�like�2018/19�or�2019/20�when�we�might�be�

looking�for�the�Park�to�become�genuinely�self-sustaining�in�terms�of�income.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��Some�of�the�costs.��At�the�moment,�the�grounds�maintenance,�

for�example,�in�the�Park�is�to�a�very�high�standard�and�in�large�areas�of�it.��Would�that�be�one�of�

the�things�that�you�would�look�to�scale�back�on?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�do�not�think�we�would.��A�lot�of�that,�we�are�tied�into�long-term�contracts.��

We�are�doing�some�benchmarking�around�that�at�the�moment�because�obviously�we�could�

adjust�that.��We�are�doing�some�work�with�the�Royal�Parks�at�the�moment�to�make�sure�that�our�

costs�are�broadly�in�line�with�the�sort�of�levels�that�they�achieve.��We�think�that�there�are�some�

fundamentals�and�the�Park�being�safe�and�being�maintained�to�a�high�standard�is�part�of�

making�it�safe,�and�the�venues�being�accessible,�successful�and�affordable�for�local�people.��I�

think�if�we�start�to�compromise�any�of�those�things,�we�will�be�getting�into�difficulty�and�

turning�our�back�on�what�people�expect�from�the�legacy�of�the�Olympic�Games�and�from�the�

Park.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��I�am�pleased�to�hear�it,�not�least�because�I�would�agree�with�you.��

One�of�the�things�that�we�discussed�on�a�very�informal�basis�when�we�did�the�tour�of�the�Park�at�

the�beginning�of�September�was�really�how�the�budget�gap�would�be�closed.��It�did�not�seem�

that�there�were�any�hard-and-fast�solutions�and�it�did�not�seem�that�there�was�anything�ruled�in�

or�out.��There�was�mention�of�the�fact�that�with�7,000�or�8,000�new�properties�on�the�Park,�a�

service�charge�of�£1,000�per�property�would�pretty�much�close�most�of�that�gap.��Of�course,�

with�the�provision�to�provide�at�least�half�of�those�new�units�as�being�affordable,�that�might�

take�that�out�of�the�affordable�range,�particularly�for�local�people.�

�

How�much�of�your�thinking�is�going�to�be�around�things�like�that�or�around�things�like�

negotiating�a�new�settlement�with�the�Mayor�and�the�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA)?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think�probably�both�is�the�answer.��In�the�short�run,�we�are�talking�to�the�GLA�

about�how�we�need�to�fill�the�gap�in�the�medium�term.��You�are�right�that�we�cannot�allow�

estate�services�charges�to�put�us�in�a�position�where�that�makes�the�housing,�that�otherwise�

Page 25



 

would�be�affordable�because�the�rent�levels�are�reasonable,�become�unaffordable�because�they�

have�excessive�service�charges�on�them.�

�

At�the�same�time,�when�we�look�at�the�market�rent�housing,�essentially�that�is�something�to�an�

extent�that�we�would�look�to�the�partners�who�are�developing�that�to�build�into�the�way�they�

price�their�product.��We�are�looking�to�generate�significant�income�from�that�source�because,�to�

be�honest,�that�is�the�only�way�we�can�make�the�Park�self-sustaining�over�time.��That�is�

something�we�have�to�do�carefully.��We�have�worked�that�through�pretty�successfully�in�the�

initial�stages�with�Taylor�Wimpey,�the�developers�of�our�first�housing�scheme�at�

Chobham�Manor,�and�it�will�obviously�be�also�a�challenge�for�us�to�work�through�in�the�process�

we�are�about�to�start�to�procure�partners�for�the�next�big�phase�of�housing�on�the�Park.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�did�have�a�financial�question�and�I�do�not�want�people�to�go�away�from�

this�meeting�thinking�I�am�some�sort�of�shroud-waving�doom-monger�or�something.�I�was�a�

great�fan�of�the�Olympics,�it�is�just�the�purpose�of�scrutiny�is�to�ask�challenging�questions.��It�is�

not�for�us�to�praise�you�in�public�or�indeed�in�private.��I�do�not�do�that�very�often,�either,�do�I?��

I�am�here�to�stand�up�for�my�constituents.�

�

The�question�I�have�is�this.��There�is�a�lot�of�good�stuff�happening.��There�is�an�elephant�in�the�

room�in�my�mind,�which�is�the�financial�memorandum�for�repaying�the�lottery�and�various�

others.�If�one�looks�at�the�London�Docklands�Development�Corporation�(LDDC),�they�had�land�

vested�at�pretty�low�values�and�were�able�to�trade�that�land�to�achieve�their�regeneration�

objectives.��You�could�sell�it�to�developers�and�get�the�money�back�and�recycle�it�into�other�

objectives.�

�

With�the�Olympic�legacy,�there�is�a�sort�of�massive�vampire�squid�-�that�is�a�term�I�heard�the�

other�day�in�relation�to�an�investment�bank�-�which�is�in�the�shape�of�a�government�which�wants�

to�suck�the�value�out�of�the�land�and�get�its�money�back.��We�do�understand�the�history�of�why�

that�happens�but�it�would�be�a�lot�easier�for�us�if�there�was�not�such�an�onerous�need.��Is�there�

any�progress�on�renegotiating�that�memorandum�to�recycle�a�greater�value�of�the�land�for�the�

regeneration�of�the�area,�which�was�after�all�an�objective?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�do�not�think�we�are�proposing�to�renegotiate�that�agreement�at�the�moment�

and�I�do�not�think�that�is�probably�the�best�approach�to�this�question.�

�

�At�the�same�time,�I�think�we�have�made�progress�in�the�discussions�we�have�had�with�

colleagues�in�Government�about�this.��The�LLDC’s�statutory�purpose�is�to�secure�the�

regeneration�of�its�area.��It�is�not�its�purpose�to�pay�back�money�to�Government�or�to�do�

anything�that�like.��That�is�not�its�statutory�purpose.��It�is�to�secure�the�regeneration�of�the�area.��

We�are�going�-�and�it�would�probably�unlawful�for�us�not�to�-�to�exercise�the�discretions�that�we�

have�for�that�primary�purpose�but�to�do�them�for�some�other�financial�and�unrelated�purpose.�

�

I�think�that�is�understood�in�Government.��This�was�an�issue�which�was�addressed�in�the�

National�Audit�Office’s�(NAO)�report�on�the�Olympic�Games�and�in�the�Public�Accounts�

Committee’s�discussions�around�the�Olympic�Games�where�there�was�a�suggestion�that�a�greater�

Page 26



 

degree�of�priority�should�be�given�to�some�of�the�repayment�obligations.��I�think�in�their�

response�to�the�Public�Accounts�Committee�(PAC)�on�that,�the�Department�for�Culture,�Media�

and�Sport�(DCMS)�were�very�clear�that�the�timing�of�land�sales�in�the�Park�was�a�matter�for�the�

LLDC�and�that�there�were�a�whole�range�of�regeneration�considerations�which�we�had�to�have�

regard�to�-�levels�of�affordable�housing,�promoting�jobs,�general�regeneration�in�east�London�-�

and�that�all�of�those�things�could�affect�the�timing�and�quantum�of�receipts.��Our�view�is�that�

that�is�an�acceptable�context�within�which�to�continue�to�plan�for�the�future.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��That�is�very�helpful.��As�a�footnote�to�this,�the�LLDC�retains�the�freehold�of�

land�and�will�dispose�on�long�leases?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��That�is�certainly�our�current�intention.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��OK.��If,�for�example,�there�was�a�slug�of�land�that�was�worth�£10�million,�

then�the�presumption�that�that�would�go�straight�back�to�the�lottery�or�whoever�is�mistaken.��As�

we�all�know,�you�can�recycle�the�value�of�land�into�other�objectives�such�as�affordable�housing�

and�other�benefits,�the�Community�Infrastructure�Levy�and�all�those�different�attributes�which�

help�to�create�the�balance�sheet.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes,�I�think�it�has�always�been�clear�on�the�face�of�the�agreement�we�have�with�

them�that�if�the�receipts�are�reduced�because�of�section�106�obligations�or�the�Community�

Infrastructure�Levy�(CIL)�or�whatever�or�because�of�the�nature�of�the�agreements�that�we�enter�

into,�if�you�like,�that�is�how�it�is.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Therefore�you�will�assiduously�avoid�the�highest�bidder�in�the�pursuit�of�

regeneration�objectives?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�will�assiduously�pursue�the�best�value-for-money�regeneration�course.��I�

think�that�is�what�we�will�do.��I�think�we�will�try�and�get�the�best�possible�value-for-money�

outcome�from�our�development�programme�and�obviously�that�will�mean�taking�a�broad�view�of�

value�because�we�are�a�regeneration�agency.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�am�sure�in�my�role�as�Chair�of�the�Budget�and�Performance�Committee�

that�we�would�be�very�interested�in�seeing�some�of�the�numbers�on�that,�but�let�us�not�delay.���

�

I�really�want�Paul�to�say�something,�actually,�because�Neale�does�all�the�talking�for�us.�Neale�

earlier�on�did�talk�about�the�shift�in�the�balance�somewhat�away�from�housing�towards�jobs�and�

regeneration,�jobs�in�the�economic�development,�so�the�opening�question�is:�what�should�be�the�

right�balance�between�the�focuses�of�supporting�new�housing�development�and�jobs�and�

growth?��You�have�sort�of�begun�to�answer�it,�but�your�philosophy�has�changed�on�this?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�think�the�philosophy�has�only�changed�really�because�of�the�impact�of�the�Olympic�

Page 27



 

Games.��I�think�the�penny�dropped�with�a�whole�lot�of�us�that�business�was�very�interested�in�

this�part�of�town�and�that�the�numbers�of�people�who�wished�to�come�here�were�great.�

�

I�think�you�have�already�mentioned�the�universities�and�I�think�we�have�been�very�interested,�

too,�in�the�universities�that�have�come.��Loughborough�already�has�its�boots�on�the�ground,�

UCL�Partners�has�its�boots�on�the�ground�and�both�of�those�are�organisations�which�are�very�

committed�to�generating�new�business�and�attracting�new�business,�so�some�of�those�university�

tenants�that�are�already�there�are�likely�to�generate�new�jobs�already�by�themselves.��I�think�that�

in�a�sense�we�are�realising�what�was�a�long-held�ambition,�which�was�to�generate�as�many�jobs�

as�possible�there.��

�

The�other�point�of�course�is�you�can�generate�as�many�jobs�as�you�want,�but�if�we�do�not�make�

those�jobs�for�local�people,�east�Londoners,�or�we�do�not�equip�east�Londoners�to�get�those�

jobs,�then�actually�the�broader�convergence�objective�will�not�be�reached.��We�have�also�put�a�

great�deal�of�energy�into�making�people�feel�that�those�jobs�are�for�them.��You�said�something�

about�people�feeling�that�the�homes�are�for�them.��We�have�certainly�put�a�lot�of�energy�into�

having�people�understand�that�those�jobs�are�for�them.��The�jobs�are�there�now�and�there�are�

jobs�that�will�come�in�the�future.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��OK,�I�will�pick�that�up�one�while�you�have�mentioned�it,�then.��During�the�

Olympic�Games,�there�were�a�number�of�programmes�which�were�about�skills�and�employability�

delivered�through�borough�units�such�as�Workplace.��The�funding�for�those�has�reduced�quite�

considerably�since�the�Olympic�Games.��Are�you�providing�support�for�projects�such�as�those?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��We�are.��In�terms�of�the�jobs�that�are�available,�they�fall�into�various�phases.��We�have�

had�the�construction�phase�that�is�still�going�on,�the�transformation�phases.��There�will�be�

future�construction�phases�through�the�neighbourhoods.��Then�there�are�end-user�jobs�if�you�

like�in�the�venues�and�in�the�management�of�the�Park,�which�are�beginning�to�come�on�stream�

now.��Then�there�are�the�jobs�that�will�be�in�the�neighbourhoods,�in�the�schools,�in�the�health�

centres�and�so�forth,�jobs�in�iCITY,�in�the�businesses�that�come�in�in�the�future.�

�

Just�briefly�to�take�those�in�turn,�we�have�exceeded�actually�our�own�expectations�on�

construction.��I�think�we�are�running�now�at�something�like�40%�or�41%�of�the�workforce�so�far�

has�been�from�the�host�boroughs.��We�know�because�we�spoke�to�people�face-to-face�that�85%�

of�those�have�been�residents�for�longer�than�a�year,�so�this�is�not�people�coming�just�to�work�on�

the�area.��We�have�hit�every�target�that�we�wanted�to�hit.�

�

One�that�we�worried�about�was�the�employment�of�disabled�people�in�the�construction�business,�

which�is�tough,�as�you�know,�but�we�have�exceeded�that�target�too�now.��That�is�really�by�

absolutely�using�the�model�that�was�developed�by�the�borough�job�brokerages�and�developed�

by�the�London�Organising�Committee�of�the�Olympic�and�Paralympic�Games�(LOCOG)�for�the�

temporary�jobs.��The�key�is�always�to�work�very�closely�with�employers�and�to�anticipate�the�jobs�

that�employers�are�going�to�bring�forward�far�enough�in�advance�that�you�can�then�go�to�the�

borough�job�brokers�so�that�they�can�speak�to�people�and�get�those�people�trained.��We�are�

investing�in�the�relationship�with�employers�and�backing�up�some�of�the�specific�training�that�is�

Page 28



 

needed�-�we�are�not�doing�the�training�ourselves�but�we�are�investing�in�it�-�and�required�to�get�

people�up�for�those�jobs.�

�

That�has�panned�through�into�the�early�work�on�the�venues.��The�Copper�Box,�for�example,�has�

only�60�jobs�but�90%�of�those�people�are�from�the�local�area�and�that�is�because�we�worked�

very�closely.��We�had�to�push�them�a�bit,�actually,�but�we�worked�very�closely�with�GLL�and�with�

the�borough�job�brokerages�to�achieve�that.��I�should�say�on�construction�the�key�has�been�

BAM�Nuttall�and�Balfour�Beatty.��As�our�tier�one�contractors�on�the�Park�and�the�Aquatic�Centre�

respectively,�they�have�been�absolutely�fantastic�in�understanding�our�ambition�and�our�

objectives�and�working�with�us.��We�have�been�able�to�put�bits�of�investment�in�where�we�have�

needed�to.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��OK.��I�think�we�can�note�that�in�the�evidence�that�you�gave�to�the�

Regeneration�and�Communities�Committee�in�Parliament,�various�speakers�were�presented�and�

they�were�very�encouraging.��Private�sector-led�regeneration�schemes�-�I�suppose�actually�

Stratford�City�would�be�a�good�example�-�have�achieved�quite�a�lot�in�terms�of�employment�

targets.��Do�you�feel�you�are�doing�better�than�those?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�would�say�we�have�been�doing�better�than�Stratford�City.��We�have�learned�a�lot�from�

Stratford�City.�

�

The�key�has�always�been�to�be�absolutely�clear�there,�as�we�have�been�in�the�Park,�with�

employers�about�what�our�priorities�are�and�what�the�difficulties�are.��I�will�go�back�to�

construction.��Construction�is�really�difficult�to�get�local�people�into�because�the�skill�base�is�not�

there,�so�you�really�do�need�long�notice�periods.��You�really�do�need�to�prepare�people�very�

carefully.��That�means�having�a�relationship�where�you�can�talk�to�people�early�enough�to�get�

the�information�you�need.�

�

We�are�in�the�middle�of�doing�the�next�piece�of�work,�,�which�is�to�anticipate�as�far�as�possible�

the�next�mix�of�jobs�that�come�in�on�the�Park.��We�are�working�very�closely�with�the�iCITY�

consortium�to�do�that�not�just�in�the�Park�but�actually�more�broadly�in�east�London.��We�are�

working�with�the�boroughs�to�try�to�determine�as�closely�as�we�can�what�kind�of�jobs�are�coming�

in�over�the�next�year�or�two�years�so�that�we�can�get�people�ready�for�those�jobs�and�actually�to�

take�that�work�back�into�schools.��We�are�doing�quite�a�lot�of�work�with�schools,�again,�with�the�

boroughs�and�others,�getting�into�schools�and�as�early�as�primary�school,�saying�to�the�young�

kids,�“This�is�a�part�of�London�that�is�changing,�these�are�the�kinds�of�sectors�that�have�arrived�

or�that�are�arriving�and�these�are�the�kinds�of�careers�you�could�aspire�to.��Incidentally,�here�is�

just�half�a�generation�above�you�who�is�already�getting�those�jobs”,�and�to�use�that�to�inspire�

kids,�which�has�always�been�the�purpose�of�the�Olympic�Games,�really.��It�was�to�inspire�the�next�

generation�not�just�in�sports�but�in�the�idea�that�they�might�have�a�future�in�this�part�of�town.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Just�in�passing,�do�you�or�any�of�your�contract�partners�use�zero-hour�

contracts?�

�

Page 29



 

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��We�do�not�use�zero-hour�contracts.��There�will�be�down�in�the�supply�chain�some�zero-

hour�contracts.��We�have�worked�really�hard�to�try�to�understand�what�happens�in�the�supply�

chain.��Again,�construction�is�very�interesting.��Our�tier�one�contractors�have�the�London�Living�

Wage,�so�on�and�so�forth.��It�is�everything�you�would�expect�that�we�are�signed�up�to.�

�

As�you�know,�once�you�get�into�a�subcontracting�network,�both�in�construction�but�also�in�

service�businesses,�it�gets�much�harder�to�figure�out�exactly�what�is�going�on.��In�construction,�

actually,�the�London�Living�Wage�is�the�least�of�it.��There�is�the�National�Minimum�Wage�you�

have�to�worry�about�and�there�are�certainly�zero-hour�contracts,�pay-as-you-earn�tax�(PAYE)�

issues�and�all�sorts�of�things,�which�is�why�we�have�worked�with�our�contractors�to�set�up�a�

voluntary�accord�with�the�agencies�that�supply�subcontractors�to�make�sure�that�we�address�

some�of�those�working�practices.��That�has�been�quite�successful.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��It�will�be�interesting�to�hear�offline�about�that�accord�and�also�about�the�

resources�you�have�for�skills�and�training.���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Just�to�say�it�is�a�very�live�issue�with�us.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�am�interested�in�the�construction�of�your�contracts,�the�shape�of�your�

contracts�and�how�you�are�encouraging�small�and�medium�enterprises�(SMEs)�to�bid�for�work�

within�those�contracts.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��We�have�always�been�very�clear�that�we�wanted�SMEs�to�be�involved�as�operators�and�

as�managers.��We�have�been�clear�that�the�door�was�open�to�social�enterprises�whether�they�are�

local�or�other.��I�think�one�of�the�things�is�simply�to�signal�that�very�strongly.��We�have�also�been�

very�clear�that�we�are�commercial�and�we�want�commercial�results.��We�are�not�from�the�school�

of�thought�that�thinks�a�social�enterprise�is�a�business�that�loses�money.��It�is�a�business�that�

makes�money�and�puts�it�back�into�its�own�social�ends.�

�

We�were�really�encouraged�from�the�early�days�when�we�let�the�contracts�for�the�estate�

management.��What�happened�was�a�number�of�the�bidders�came�forward�as�quite�large�

national�or�multinational�companies�but�as�part�of�consortia�where�they�brought�local�

companies�in.��Balfour�Beatty�WorkPlace�is�one.��The�contractor�for�the�estate�and�facilities�

management�brought�with�them�Renaisi�and�Groundwork,�two�small�businesses�locally,�to�add�

that�dimension�that�we�were�clearly�asking�for.��They�were�not�the�only�people�who�did�that,�

incidentally,�but�they�were�the�major�ones,�so�I�think�signalling�that�is�very�important.�

�

The�other�thing�we�did�early�on�was�make�it�really�clear�that�we�were�going�to�break�up�our�

catering�concessions�into�small�lots�and�we�were�going�to�invite�small�businesses.��We�were�

really�pleased�with�the�response�when�we�put�the�first�of�those�tenders�out�which�was�for�

Timber�Lodge,�the�lodge�in�the�North�Park.��That�was�a�contract�again�that�attracted�a�lot�of�

small�businesses�and�it�was�won�by�the�Camden�Society,�a�north�London-based�social�enterprise,�

running�the�café�but�in�partnership�with�Community�Links,�which�is�as,�you�know,�a�small�

Page 30



 

charitable�business�in�east�London,�to�help�run�the�community�facility�that�is�attached�to�the�

café.��That�is�another�very�good�example.�

�

We�will�do�more�of�that.��I�think�if�you�open�the�door�and�you�make�it�clear�that�is�what�you�

want,�people�will�apply.��Actually,�what�you�find�out�there�is�there�is�a�lot�of�really�good�quality�

commercial�businesses,�small,�that�are�doing�the�job.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��OK.��If�I�can�burrow�a�bit�further�into�this�SME�question,�Paul,�so�slice�into�

the�iCITY�question.��One�of�the�storylines�of�the�Olympic�Games�is�that�quite�a�lot�of�SMEs�

which�were�perfectly�happy�trundling�along�in�the�area�were�extinguished�by�the�Olympic�

Games.��They�were�acquired.��They�had�to�move�out.��Jobs�disappeared.��An�important�part�of�

the�legacy�is�to�create�a�fabric�in�which�there�are�a�substantial�number�of�new�SMEs�located�

within�the�legacy�Park�and�its�fringe�areas.��You�spoke�about�Hackney�Wick�as�a�very�exciting�

area.��I�think�we�all�know�there�is�big�development�pressure�and�that�has�eased�off�a�bit,�but�

there�is�a�risk�of�housing�developers�snapping�up�sites�and�squeezing�out�businesses�and�so�on.�

�

Are�you�clear�in�your�objectives�as�to�how�you�can�preserve�the�fabric�of�SMEs�in�reasonably�

affordable�space�as�part�of�the�legacy?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�think�you�have�already�alluded�to�it�so�I�will�not�elaborate�but�in�Hackney�Wick�

particularly,�but�also�in�Fish�Island.��Those�are�the�main�two�locations.�

�

Yes,�clarity�about�how�we�use�our�planning�powers�to�keep�conditions�that�allow�them�to�

flourish�as�well�as�bringing�new�business�into�the�empty�land�that�is�there.��That�is�one.��Two:�I�

have�been�very�encouraged�by�the�ambition�of�the�iCITY�consortium�to�fill�that�space�with�small�

businesses�and�I�think�we�will�be�seeing�as�they�bring�their�plans�forward�actually�some�very�

exciting�configurations�of�the�iCITY�space�in�order�to�do�that.��I�am�really�very�encouraged�by�

that�and�we�will�see.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��You�almost�have�my�script�in�front�of�you�here,�not�that�I�ever�normally�

follow�it.��Can�you�update�us�on�the�discussions�about�the�next�steps�in�iCITY,�then?��So�we�

have�the�headlines�.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Before�I�do,�I�would�just�add�that�the�final�thing�with�that,�now�that�land�is�becoming�

available�and�released�from�transformation,�is�the�interim�use.��The�meanwhile�use�is�very�

important�to�us.��I�think�we�have�two�aims�for�that.��One�of�them�is�about�animating�the�routes�

in�and�out�of�the�Park,�but�the�other�actually�is�to�attract�small�business�in�who�can�begin�to�

work�on�an�interim�basis�and�will�then�be�the�businesses�that�move�into�our�retail�and�

commercial�space�in�the�neighbourhoods�as�we�open�them.��We�want�to�try�and�establish�that�

habit�of�small�businesses�moving�in,�working�and�then�moving�into�our�future�space�-�early�

doers,�really�-�so�that�we�do�not�end�up�with�either�empty�retail�and�commercial�units�in�our�

neighbourhoods�or�units�that�go�for�other�uses.�

�

Page 31



 

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�have�to�be�a�little�careful�about�stealing�iCITY’s�thunder�here�because�they�are�

about�to�submit�a�planning�application�and�in�the�wake�of�that�they�will�have�obviously�quite�an�

ambitous�marketing�campaign�around�the�space�that�they�have�available.��They�have�not�

actually�shown�us�the�guts�of�the�marketing�campaign�yet,�although�we�have�been�through�

some�of�their�ideas,�as�Paul�says,�about�what�they�are�going�to�do�with�their�work�to�the�

broadcast�centre�and�the�media�centre.�

�

Obviously,�we�have�something�like�40%�of�the�total�space�let�to�three�big�tenants�and�a�smaller�

tenant.��We�have�BT�Sport.��We�have�Infinity�signed�up�as�the�datacentre�provider�there.��We�

have�Loughborough�signed�up�and�we�have�Hackney�Community�College�signed�up�in�

association�with�Loughborough,�so�we�have�those�four�tenants�in�place.��They�are�focused�on�

the�broadcast�centre.�

�

So�far,�there�are�no�lets�on�the�press�centre�there.��iCITY�continues�to�talk�to�a�whole�range�of�

people�who�are�interested�in�coming�and�taking�space�there.��There�is�a�real�demand�and�they�

are�very�excited�about�the�extent�of�market�demand�there.��They�are�looking�at�a�broad�range�of�

potential�users.��There�are�obviously�some�big�spaces�in�the�press�centre�that�can�be�taken.��

There�are�whole�floors�there�and�I�think�they�are�looking�at�businesses�with�a�focus�on�

innovation,�links�with�Loughborough�and�other�universities�in�the�area�and�close�by.��As�I�say,�

no�further�lets�are�settled.��There�are�a�lot�of�discussions�going�on�and�I�am�confident�we�are�

going�to�see�some�really�exciting�employers�moving�in.�

�

At�the�same�time,�they�are�looking�at�the�potential�in�the�broadcast�centre�to�create�a�whole�

range�of�space�for�smaller�businesses�including�very�small�businesses.��There�are�some�really�

imaginative�ideas�about�how�you�can�use�the�gantry�spaces�on�one�side�of�the�block�and�we�will�

see�that�when�their�planning�application�comes�forward�shortly.��There�is�just�a�big�buzz�around�

the�place.��With�BT,�Paul�has�talked�about�some�of�the�things�they�are�doing.��The�encouraging�

thing�is�that�both�iCITY�and�all�the�occupiers�are�really�committed�to�working�with�us�on�some�

of�these�broader�objectives.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��The�key�purpose�of�Loughborough�coming�here�is�to�take�the�research�that�they�are�

bringing�and�use�it�to�create�start-ups.��In�fact,�I�am�going�up�to�Loughborough�tomorrow�to�

look�at�what�they�have�done�up�there�in�terms�of�their�business�start-up�and�incubation�and�

growth�unit.��That�is�what�they�want�to�do�here.�

�

The�final�thing�I�would�say�is�actually�we�have�50,000�square�metres�of�consented�commercial�

workspace�down�at�Pudding�Hill�Lane,�which�people�tend�to�forget�is�part�of�our�land.��We�are�

beginning�now,�as�that�becomes�available�after�we�stop�using�it�for�logistics,�to�talk�about�what�

that�is�for.��I�think�we�are�beginning�to�have�some�quite�interesting�thoughts�about�that.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�have�two�other�tiny�things.����The�first�is:�the�other�massive�development�

in�the�area�is�of�course�the�International�Quarter�which,�because�it�sits�next�to�Stratford�City,�

might�get�forgotten.��It�is�the�biggest�potential�supplier�of�jobs�in�the�whole�Olympic�Park.��It�is�

not�actually�your�development,�is�it?�

Page 32



 

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No.��The�land�is�owned�by�Lend�Lease,�there�is�a�joint�venture�between�

Lend�Lease�and�London�&�Continental�Railways.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��There�are�potentially�25,000�jobs�there.��Do�you�have�tentacles�into�it�in�

terms�of�your�remit?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�are�obviously�the�planning�authority�but�also�we�try�and�work�very�closely�

with�all�the�major�private�sector�landowners�in�the�area,�so�Lend�Lease�and�LCR�but�also�

obviously�Westfield,�Inter�Ikea�and�others.��There�is�development�coming�forward�on�the�

International�Quarter.��There�is�a�new�hotel�where�a�deal�has�been�done�that�will�come�forward�

there.��They�are�looking�at�bringing�forward�their�residential.��Obviously,�they�continue�to�try�to�

look�for�opportunities�to�begin�the�commercial�development�there.��Anything�that�we�can�do�to�

support�them�in�that�we�try�to�do�and�we�talk�to�them�about�that.��It�is�very�important�for�the�

area�that�we�do�succeed�in�getting�some�of�that�commercial�development�away�and�I�hope�that�

will�happen.��I�would�have�thought�it�unlikely�that�they�are�going�to�build�speculatively�in�the�

commercial�space�there,�so�it�is�a�matter�of�continuing�with�their�marketing�to�try�to�attract�

tenants�to�the�site.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��My�other�little�question�is�about�the�Carpenters�Estate�and�that�is�torn�

between�various�other�uses�that�people�intend�for�it�and�the�existing�community�on�the�estate.��

Do�you�have�a�position�on�Carpenters?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�am�not�sure�what�you�mean�by�“a�position”.��The�land�there�is�owned�by�the�

council.��The�council�has�tenants�and�leaseholders�on�that�land.��There�are�freeholders�on�that�

land.��I�think�the�primary�responsibility�for�coming�forward�with�proposals�for�that�area�is�with�

Newham.���

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��As�the�development�corporation,�you�have�a�perfect�right�to�have�your�own�

sweeping�plans�for�the�area,�but�you�are�abstaining�from�that.��You�are�passing�it�back�to�

Newham.��Is�that�what�you�are�saying?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think�it�would�be�strange�in�exactly�the�same�way�as�if�we�were�to�go�and�tell�

Lend�Lease�what�sort�of�offices�to�build�on�their�site,�which�we�do�not.��I�am�not,�in�the�first�

instance,�going�to�go�and�tell�Newham�what�to�do�with�their�site.�

�

They�did�have�proposals,�as�you�know,�which�have�now�been�abandoned�for�bringing�a�

university�to�the�estate�and�they�are�now,�I�think,�thinking�again�about�the�options�for�that�site.��

We�expect�them,�when�they�have�finished�thinking�about�that�and�have�some�firm�options�in�

mind,�obviously�to�come�and�talk�to�us�about�them�and�we�are�waiting�for�them�to�do�that.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��OK.��I�thank�you,�Chair.��I�worry�about�the�continuing�uncertainties.�

Page 33



 

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�agree.��I�think�it�is�important�that�the�future�of�the�estate�is�resolved�and�

we�hope�and�expect�that�Newham�will�be�in�a�position�to�come�and�talk�to�us�soon�about�what�

they�are�going�to�do.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Obviously,�there�is�a�formal�process�for�thinking�about�it�through�the�generation�of�our�

local�plan.��Carpenters�Estate�is�in�our�area�but�the�Stratford�Island�site,�for�example,�is�outside�

the�area�and�there�will�be�ideas�coming�forward�from�that�that�will�go�to�Newham.��Again,�it�is�

important�to�see�Stratford�as�one�place.��We�certainly�see�Stratford�as�one�place,�even�the�bits�

that�are�outside�our�area.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�have�some�quite�narrow�points�of�view.��I�do�not�think�it�is�for�us�at�this�

stage�to�get�directly�involved�in,�if�you�like,�the�landlord-tenant�issues�that�there�are�there,�

which�are�primarily�for�the�council.��Clearly,�we�would�want�to�see�development�there�planned�in�

association�with�development�on�the�Park.��For�example,�it�would�be�extremely�helpful�for�the�

future�of�the�Park�and�the�general�development�of�the�area�if�any�plan�that�did�come�forward�

for�the�estate�also�facilitated�new�routes�from�Stratford�Station�directly�into�the�Park.��We�would�

want�to�work�with�them�on�master-planning�that�in�due�course.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Thank�you,�Chair.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��I�just�wanted�to�be�specific�now�because�I�want�to�

talk�about�black�and�minority�ethnic�small�businesses,�not�just�because�it�is�Black�History�

Month.��But�the�Mayor�last�night�at�a�meeting�here�with�a�full�Chamber�of�black�businesses�was�

nodding�and�agreeing�that�one�of�the�things�that�we�should�be�looking�at,�especially�the�Mayor�

himself�and�his�strategies�and�policies,�is�to�unpick�these�hurdles�that�small�black�and�minority�

ethnic�businesses�meet.��We�talked�about�the�large�contracts�and�we�have�heard�talk�about�

breaking�those�down.�

�

In�this�area�the�Pakistani�business�community�is�one�of�the�largest�business�communities�in�the�

country�and�very�able.��Not�far�away�we�have�one�of�the�largest�Jewish�business�communities�in�

the�country.��It�is�sat�in�the�middle�of�one�of�the�largest�Vietnamese�communities,�Afro-

Caribbean�and�black�communities.��I�am�sorry�if�I�have�missed�anybody�out.��These�are�vital�

businesses�that�have�been�here�in�these�areas,�that�actually�transformed�these�areas.��My�

concern�is�that�they�will�not�get�an�opportunity�to�be�part�of�the�growth�of�this�area�from�now�

until�2030.��What�positive�discussions�are�you�having�with�businesses�from�these�communities?��

If�you�have�not,�do�you�have�a�plan�to?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�have�talked�about�our�commitment�to�opportunities�for�small�businesses�and�the�way�

that�has�begun�to�happen.���

�

Page 34



 

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Black�and�minority�ethnic�businesses.��This�is�an�area�

where�the�population�is�in�the�majority?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Hang�on.��My�argument�is�going�to�be�that�I�think�the�key�thing�is�to�open�up�to�small�

businesses,�actually,�and�I�would�be�amazed,�then,�if�black�and�minority�ethnic�(BME)�business�

then�do�not�take�advantage�of�that.��I�am�going�to�use�that�because�of�the�employment.��I�

cannot�point�to�something�where�we�have�not�seen�a�result�yet�because�we�do�not�have�those�

businesses.��However,�if�you�think�of�the�kinds�of�businesses�that�we�are�going�to�need�in�the�

neighbourhoods,�they�are�going�to�be�serving�7,000�homes�in�the�retail�spaces�there�and�

commercial�spaces.�

�

Let�me�just�wind�back�to�employment.��In�employment,�we�have�busted�every�target�we�ever�

expected,�so�I�can�tell�you�that�once�you�open�up�the�market�to�local�people,�we�end�up�with�

63%�of�our�workforce�being�from�BME�groups,�which�is�what�you�would�expect.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��We�are�not�talking�about�your�cleaners.��I�am�not�

talking�about�your�manual�jobs.��I�am�talking�about�your�accountants.��I�am�talking�about�your�

surveyors.��You�have�here�a�diverse�community�with�all�these�skills,�with�businesses.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes.��I�am�confident�that�once�we�begin�to�have�numbers�of�small�businesses�active�in�

the�Park,�once�we�get�the�rest�of�our�small�contracts�let,�which�will�not�be�many,�actually,�but�

once�we�get�those�neighbourhoods�open�and�businesses�moving�into�those�neighbourhoods,�we�

will�see�the�full�reflection�of�local�businesses�that�you�would�expect.�

�

The�one�thing�that�we�have�done�at�the�moment,�for�example,�in�the�festivals�that�we�had�

where�we�had�an�opportunity�to�get�some�small�businesses�in�through�the�concession�work,�to�

be�the�stores,�to�be�doing�the�catering�concessions,�to�be�the�acts�on�the�small�stages,�as�is�

appropriate�for�small�acts.��Actually,�if�you�went�to�those�festivals,�the�two�of�them�really,�the�

Create�Open�East�Festival�and�also�the�National�Paralympic�Day,�you�saw�businesses�active�there�

that�were�reflective�of�the�diversity�of�east�London�that�you�have�talked�about.��At�the�one�

opportunity�we�have�had�so�far�to�work�with�our�partners�like�Create�and�with�our�partners�in�

the�boroughs�to�get�small�businesses�in�there,�they�were�reflective�of�the�community.��I�am�very�

confident�that�as�we�go�forward�and�are�looking�for�the�permanent�businesses�that�will�come�

and�occupy�space�in�the�Park,�we�will�see�the�same�thing�happen.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��I�will�come�back�to�this�another�day�because�I�would�

like�some�figures�as�well.��I�would�like�us�to�move�away�from�talking�about�seeing�BME�jobs�in�

terms�of�service.��I�would�like�to�be�seeing�how�companies�from�many�ethnic�communities�who�

are�in�finance,�who�are�in�investment,�are�involved�in�this�area�and�at�this�stage.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes.��What�I�am�saying�to�you�is�all�I�can�ask�you�to�do�is�judge�us�so�far�on�the�only�

thing�you�can�judge�us�on:�the�workforce�that�we�have,�which�is�reflective,�and�on�the�small�

Page 35



 

businesses�that�have�been�involved�in�the�events�we�have�run�because�those�are�really�the�large�

volumes�where�we�have�been�successful.�

�

I�think�you�are�absolutely�correct�that�we�need�to�see�that�then�reflected�in�the�permanent�

businesses�that�move�into�the�Park�and�move�into�our�facilities�afterwards.��I�am�very�confident�

that�we�will�work�as�hard�to�make�sure�that�they�reflect�the�diversity�of�east�London�as�we�have�

already�worked.��I�am�sure�and�am�very�confident�that�in�two,�three,�four�or�five�years�as�those�

businesses�increase�in�numbers�in�iCITY�or�in�the�neighbourhoods,�we�will�see�the�diversity�that�

you�have�talked�about�reflected�and�that�it�will�not�just�be�the�low-level�businesses.��It�will�be�

small�businesses�acting�across�the�range�because�that�is�what�we�have�seen�in�jobs�and�in�the�

businesses�that�we�have�had�for�our�temporary�events.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��I�am�sure�you�do�not�mean�it�with�the�phrasing�“low�

level”.��It�is�not�about�that.��Every�job�is�valued.��I�just�think�that�there�is�a�mind-set�that�I�will�

not�accept�that�says�there�are�certain�jobs�that�certain�communities�do.��I�am�looking�for�an�

openness�and�an�understanding.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�think�that�is�absolutely�right.��It�is�interesting�you�say�that�because,�if�you�look�at�

BT�Sport,�for�example,�they�have�the�workforce�in�high-level�technical�jobs.��They�have�recruited�

a�workforce�that�is�at�a�high�technical�level.��It�is�not�reflective�of�east�London.��What�is�very�

interesting�there�talking�to�BT�Sport�and�iCITY�is�what�will�be�crucial�is�the�relationship�with�

Hackney�Community�College�and�the�apprentices�so�that�in�three,�four,�five�or�ten�years’�time�as�

the�next�generation�comes�in�to�take�those�high-grade�technical�jobs,�that�will�look�like�east�

London.��I�think�we�have�a�real�job�to�be�done,�but�what�encourages�me�really�strongly�is�that�

the�people�who�run�BT�Sport�and�the�people�who�run�iCITY�share�the�ambition�that�you�have�

set�out�there.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��I�can�assure�you�that�I�have�already�been�and�had�a�

discussion�with�Andrew�Campling�[General�Manager�for�London]�from�BT�and�said�to�him�that�

the�profile�of�his�staff�to�date�did�not�reflect�that�locality�--�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��No,�it�does�not.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��--�and�so�that�is�something�I�will�be�staying�on�the�

case�of.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think�that�is�right.��That�is�very�helpful,�actually,�to�us�as�we�work�with�them�

to�change�that.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��They�did�acknowledge�what�you�are�saying�on�the�site�visit�that�

we�went�on�and�they�did�talk�about�joined-up�thinking�before�going�off�into�the�future�and�that�

was�part�of�the�reason�for�getting�two�tenants�like�that�in�the�same�building.�

�

Page 36



 

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��I�was�going�to�ask�about�the�Cultural�Quarter�but�I�see�it�is�a�question�in�

its�own�right.��Just�summing�up�what�Jennette�said�last�night,�one�of�the�points�made�by�the�

audience�and�some�extremely�high-powered�businesses�was�that�small�and�medium-sized�

enterprises�are�locked�out�and�BME�enterprises�are�locked�out�of�contracts.��One�of�the�ways�

forward�in�terms�of�procurement�might�be�if�they�--�bundled?��Is�that�the�expression?�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Unpicked�or�unbundled.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��It�was�more�bringing�themselves�together�so�that�they�could�actually�bid�

as�consortia.��I�think�that�was�what�the�bundling�meant.��I�wonder�how�much�of�that�is�

encouraged.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�think,�as�I�indicated�earlier,�we�have�encouraged�that,�yes.��There�are�a�number�of�

both�things.��So�an�example�of�unbundling.��Both�things�are�ways�of�working.�In�terms�of�

unbundling,�for�example,�we�took�a�look�at�our�catering�contracts�across�the�Park�and�we�could�

have�said,�“We�will�hire�one�big�company�to�run�all�the�catering�out�of�all�our�venues�and�all�of�

the�temporary�catering�in�the�South�Park�Plaza�once�it�is�open”,�but�actually�we�took�a�very�

clear�decision�not�to�do�that�but�to�unbundle�that�big�contract�--�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Sorry,�I�am�getting�it�wrong,�then.��It�is�not�consortia.���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��No,�it�is�both�of�those�things.��This�is�an�example�on�the�catering�contract.��We�could�

have�let�one�big�contract.��A�very�big�company�would�have�got�it.��We�decided�not�do�that.��We�

decided�to�say,�“We�will�let�the�contract�for�Timber�Lodge,�which�is�the�North�Park�Hub,�as�the�

first�one�and�then�we�will�let�the�other�catering�concessions�that�we�have�individually”.���

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Yes,�I�really�liked�eating�at�Timber�Lodge.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Exactly.��That�is�run�by�the�Camden�Society,�which�is�based�in�north�London�actually�

but�is�a�small�business,�a�social�enterprise,�in�partnership�with�Community�Links,�which�is�a�small�

charity�business�which�runs�out�of�Canning�Town.��That�is�an�example�where�they�now�are�doing�

that�and�you�saw�it�is�good�quality�stuff�they�do�there.��But�they�are�running�that�place�because�

we�unbundled�the�contracts.��Now,�as�we�let�the�contracts�for�the�other�venues�and�the�outdoor�

concessions�on�the�Park�for�catering,�they�will�go�to�a�constellation�of�small�businesses.��That�is�

one�thing.�

�

The�second�thing�is�the�consortia�example,�so�if�you�are�managing�a�park,�you�really�have�to�

have�one�business�manager�in�that�park.��Otherwise,�your�finance�for�one�thing�will�go�to�shot,�

so�your�quality�goes.��The�whole�thing�will�be�a�mess.��However�actually,�you�can�let�the�

contract�in�a�way�that�says,�“We�are�really�committed�to�having�the�local�in�here,�because�

actually�we�think�your�business�managing�the�Park,�cutting�the�grass,�doing�the�security,�first�of�

all�needs�to�understand�the�local�conditions�and�needs�to�understand�the�young�people�who�

might�come�in�and�do�good�things�or�bad�things�in�the�Park,�needs�to�understand�how�to�make�

sure�that�local�people�can�get�the�jobs,�to�make�sure�that�local�community�organisations�can�do�

Page 37



 

the�volunteering,�which�also�helps�you�with�security”.��So,�because�we�have�put�such�a�high�

premium�on�that,�we�include�it�in�the�scoring�mechanism�for�marking�the�bidders�and�we�

included�that�as�a�high�score�that�it�would�be�local,�what�we�found�is�that�a�number�of�the�

bidders�came�forward�with�a�big�multinational�company�at�the�core�but�in�partnership�with�local�

small�businesses,�not�just�in�a�lip-service�partnership�but�in�a�genuine�partnership,�so�a�business�

relationship�between�big�and�small.��The�people�who�won�that,�the�Balfour�Beatty�WorkPlace�in�

partnership�with�Renaisi,�which�is�a�small�business�based�in�Hackney,�and�Groundwork�East�

London,�which�is�a�small�charitable�business,�part�of�the�Groundwork�family�but�operates�across�

east�London,�those�three�together�are�doing�that�piece�of�work�for�us�and�that�is�why�we�are�

able�to�now�drive�up�the�number�of�local�employees�in�that�consortium�because�they�have�those�

things.�

�

I�think�there�are�two�things�you�can�do.��Both�of�the�things�you�have�said�are�right.��Where�

appropriate,�unbundle�the�contracts�so�that�small�businesses�can�bid�for�them.��Where�that�is�

not�appropriate,�like�we�have�to�manage�this�Park�as�a�whole,�you�make�it�really�clear�that�you�

expect�to�see�a�local�understanding�and�a�local�dimension�in�the�delivery.��The�experience�we�

have�had�is�that�that�drives�people�towards�including�small�businesses�in�their�bidding�consortia.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��When�you�put�your�contracts�together�for�tender,�do�you�give�

them�a�steer�pretty�much�along�the�lines�of�what�you�have�just�said?��Do�you�actually�speak�to�

them�and�suggest�that�they�go�to�local�businesses�to�partner�with�them�as�a�way�of�getting�into�

that�or�is�that�something�you�leave�to�them�to�intuitively�work�out�for�themselves?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�tell�them�what�the�evaluation�is.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes,�we�tell�them�what�we�want.��We�tell�them�what�we�expect�to�see.��Actually,�if�you�

are�looking�at�the�procurement,�you�will�say,�“OK,�we�need�some�local�knowledge�here”.��Then,�

in�the�scoring�mechanism,�you�can�value�that�in�the�scoring,�up�to�a�certain�extent.��Obviously,�

commercial�finance�is�important,�too,�as�you�have�talked�about,�so�it�is�about�getting�a�balance.�

�

We�have�not�broker�marriages�but�we�have�made�it�very�clear.��What�is�interesting�actually�is�you�

get�a�big�company�looking�around�the�areas�and�seeing�the�players�they�might�go�into�business�

with.��We�have�seen�one�or�two�examples�where�actually�they�did�not�win�the�bid�but�they�had�

gone�off�and�done�other�things�together,�which�is�rather�nice.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��Yes,�that�is�quite�a�beneficial�by-product.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes.��Actually�I�think�there�are�in�east�London�a�lot�of�small�businesses�that�have�

become�very�open�to�the�idea�of�business�relationships�because�that�is�particularly�helpful�where�

you�have�charitable�businesses�that�have�been�cutting�their�teeth�and�becoming�more�aware�

themselves�of�the�need�to�generate�revenues.��They�have�lost�their�fear�of�working�with�big�

businesses,�they�have�moved�from�accepting�money�from�big�businesses�on�the�basis�of�

Page 38



 

corporate�social�responsibility�money�and�started�looking�for�opportunities�to�have�genuine�

business�relationships�in�which�they�bring�something�to�the�party.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Like�trading�arms?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes,�for�charities.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Neale,�the�Committee�heard�when�we�visited�the�site�

in�September�that�the�LLDC�would�like�to�see�the�Park�and�Stratford�become�a�cultural�

destination.��You,�it�is�reported�to�me,�at�a�staff�meeting�said�that�you�want�to�create�a�new�

Southbank�as�part�of�the�LLDC.��This�is�what�you�told�staff�and�they�have�reported�it�back�to�us.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�am�being�spied�on?���

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Yes.��Now,�can�I�say�to�you�now?��Let�us�put�this�

perspective.��The�Royal�College�of�Arts�is�investing�in�Battersea,�we�have�the�Southbank�

regenerating�itself�nicely,�we�have�the�King’s�Cross�Cultural�Quarter�with�Central�Saint�Martins�

and�now�we�have�a�new�Stratford�Cultural�Quarter.��To�what�extent�is�this�sort�of�thinking�now�

about�shortage�of�space�or�about�financial�sustainability�or�about�the�need�for�there�to�be�that�

cultural�offer�in�the�area?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��It�is�one�of�the�things�which�the�Mayor�is�personally�very�committed�to�here.��

We�are�really�looking�to�try�to�make�Stratford,�Stratford�Town�Centre�and�the�Park�a�big�

destination,�for�it�to�have�a�big�destination�offer.��We�think�there�are�some�fantastic�

opportunities�in�the�Park�to�do�that.�

�

We�have,�for�example,�a�terrific�site�which�we�will�be�seeking�to�develop�in�the�medium�term�on�

the�waterfront�at�Stratford,�which�is�where�the�water�polo�venue�was�during�the�Olympic�Games.��

If�you�think�about�it,�if�you�went�to�the�Olympic�Games,�when�you�crossed�the�big�bridge,�it�was�

the�site�immediately�to�your�right.��It�fronts�onto�the�river�down�there.��It�is�very�close�to�

transport.��It�is�potentially�very�accessible�directly�off�that�bridge�and�in�other�ways�as�well.��You�

could�imagine�that�site�being�extremely�attractive�for�a�range�of�commercial�development,�for�it�

being�a�place�which�is�very�lively,�which�has�a�lot�of�leisure�destinations,�which�has�the�bars,�

which�has�the�restaurants.��The�ability�to�do�that�and�to�really�make�that�exciting�would�be�

enhanced�very�considerably�if�we�could�look�at�putting�some�very�significant�cultural�attractors�

on�that�site.��If�you�brought�people�there�in�large�numbers,�perhaps�particularly�if�you�were�able�

to�do�that�around�the�two�ends�of�the�site,�it�could�be�a�very�exciting�way�to�really�draw�more�

people�into�Stratford.�

�

We�do�want�to�do�that.��We�are�very�keen�to�see�that�and�it�is�not�just�about�the�Park�and�it�is�

not�just�about�the�big�things�that�one�would�immediately�think�of�as�cultural�attractions.��For�

example,�we�have�actively�encouraged�Westfield�to�develop�and�bring�forward�the�plans�that�

they�have�announced�in�embryo�to�put�a�major�snow�sports�centre�in�central�Stratford�which�we�

Page 39



 

think,�and�Westfield�thinks,�could�attract�millions�of�extra�visitors�a�year�to�the�area.��No�doubt�

Westfield�hopes�they�will�do�some�shopping�while�they�are�there.��So,�yes,�we�want�to�do�that.�

�

We�are�at�a�relatively�early�stage�of�thinking�that�through�and�talking�to�potential�partners,�but�

we�are�trying�now�to�look�at�the�sorts�of�people�we�might�work�with�in�doing�that,�particularly�

on�the�most�attractive�parts�of�the�site.��We�think�that�in�the�right�way,�with�the�right�partners,�

with�the�right�support,�that�could�have�a�very�big�economic�impact�as�well�as�being�an�exciting�

way�to�develop�the�Park.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��But�you�are�looking�and�thoughts�have�been�about�a�

university�and�clearly�that�brings�students�and�brings�that�sort�of�energy.��Does�it�bring�culture?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes,�I�think�it�does.��I�think�it�brings�learning.��It�brings�education.��It�brings�

excitement�to�the�area.��I�think�there�is�a�very�direct�link�potentially�between�developing�a�big�

higher�education�offer�on�the�Park�and�the�sorts�of�cultural�offers�that�one�might�bring�there.��If�

you�look�at�what�is�happening�at�iCITY,�I�think�some�of�the�exciting�things�that�are�happening�

there�are�around�the�creative�businesses�that�go�there,�the�businesses�that�are�about�design�but�

also�the�businesses�that�are�about�making�things.��London’s�economy�is�changing�fast.��We�all�

know�what�the�big�growth�areas�in�the�economy�are.��A�lot�of�them�are�about�creative�

businesses�in�the�broadest�sense�of�that�term.��I�think�that�is�really�one�of�the�things�we�want�to�

push�as�being�part�of�the�future�of�this�place.��It�is�where�that�sort�of�thing�will�happen,�whether�

it�is�new�design�businesses,�whether�it�is�new�cultural�businesses,�but�all�of�those�potentially�can�

link�and�cross-fertilise�with�a�higher�education�presence�on�the�site.��I�know�that�is�something�

which�the�higher�education�partners�we�are�talking�to�are�potentially�very�excited�about.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Just�a�moment,�Paul.��If�I�can�just�stay�with�Neale,�we�

know�-�and�you�made�reference�to�them�in�your�answer�to�John�[Biggs]�-�that�the�

International�Quarter,�which�is�on�the�south�side�of�the�development,�and�LCR,�which�is�a�

Government-owned�company�-�so�it�seems�to�me�you�could�have�a�really�stronger�relationship�

with�them�than�maybe�Lend�Lease�-�are�bringing�in�a�four-star�hotel.��Does�that�come�with�its�

own�casino?��We�know�some�cultures�come�with�hotels.��We�will�not�go�there.���

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think�hotels�are�very�important�to�the�area�and�they�would�be�very�important�

to�the�area�as�a�destination.��When�people�come�for�events�or�to�visit�the�area,�currently�they�go�

and�they�stay�in�local�hotels.��We�have�built�some.��In�the�area�we�have�seen�significant�hotel�

development�off�the�back�of�the�Olympics.��It�is�a�substantial�job�creator.��Also,�as�I�say,�if�you�

want�people�to�come�to�the�area,�if�you�want�tourism�to�be�about�east�London�as�well�as�west�

London�and�central�London,�we�need�a�very�good�quality�hotel�offer.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Are�you�talking�to�them,�both�Lend�Lease�and�LCR,�

about�work�in�that�cultural�offer�within�their�area�as�well?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�are�certainly�talking�to�Lend�Lease�and�LCR�and�Westfield�and�all�the�other�

Page 40



 

big�landowners�about�our�developing�ideas�for�the�Park�so�that�they�understand�what�we�are�

trying�to�do�and�so�that�we�understand�their�development�plans.��Obviously,�they�have�their�

own�commercial�interests�but,�broadly�speaking,�most�of�what�we�are�doing�is�to�be�welcomed�

by�them�because�it�is�creating�new�opportunity.��It�is�increasing�the�potential�they�have�for�

using�their�sites�or�the�attractiveness�of�their�sites�to�occupiers�and�tenants.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��It�is�an�area�that�we�are�interested�in�because�it�does�

need�a�cultural�offer�and�it�does�need�to�be�distinctive�of�that�area.��I�am�just�not�sure�what�it�is�

going�to�be.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�hope�to�be�able�to�clarify�that�over�the�next�year.��I�am�not�in�a�position�to�

say�anything�very�definite�now,�but�we�are�talking�to�people.���

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��The�National�Gallery�would�look�quite�good�in�Stratford.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Indeed�and�why�not?�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��Why�not,�indeed.��We�should�be�thinking�ambitiously�like�that.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Also,�in�addition�to�being�about�the�large�and�the�set�piece,�it�is�about�the�small�and�

the�diverse�again.��The�Southbank�is�fun�but�probably�a�lot�of�people�do�not�ever�walk�in�the�big�

buildings.��They�just�enjoy�what�is�happening�there.��If�you�think�of�Stratford�Rising,�which�is�

the�grouping�of�cultural�organisations�in�Stratford,�down�the�Stratford�High�Street,�the�Cultural�

Interest�Group�in�Hackney�Wick�and�Fish�Island,�there�is�an�enormous�amount�of�organisations�

there�which�are�about�performance�and�about�song�and�dance�and�those�activities.��Across�the�

canal,�on�the�opposite�side�of�the�canal�from�the�Stratford�waterfront�that�you�are�talking�

about,�is�the�South�Park�Plaza�that�we�are�building�at�this�moment,�the�idea�of�which�is�this�

promenade�between�the�canals�north�of�the�Orbit,�which�also�then�has�spaces�for�performance�

whether�it�is�individuals,�groups,�schools,�clubs�or�any�of�those�diverse�cultural�organisations.��I�

already�know�that�Stratford�Rising�organisations�and�other�organisations�are�just�waiting�for�the�

day�they�can�begin�to�inhabit�those�spaces�and�bring�the�small�and�the�lively�as�well�as�the�set�

piece�cultural�institution.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Just�as�a�bit�of�a�distinctive�element�in�it�perhaps,�if�you�look�at�the�Southbank,�

it�is�an�exciting�place.��It�is�a�great�place.��Lots�of�people�come�there.��The�catering�and�

restaurant�offer�is�very�chain-like.��That�is�not�what�we�would�want�to�encourage,�frankly,�here.��

We�want�something�that�was�much�--�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��The�foodie�centre�of�the�world�with�the�world’s�

foods.�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�should�put�a�plug�in�for�Birkbeck�College,�of�course,�of�which�I�am�a�

governor,�which�is�based�up�at�--�

Page 41



 

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��Do�you�have�an�interest�there?�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�do�not�get�paid�so�--�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��But�the�area�already�has�its�own�university,�the�

University�of�East�London.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��John�is�right�to�talk�about�that�because�that�is�about�to�open,�I�think.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��It�has�opened.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��It�is�going�to�have�its�official�opening�shortly.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��The�point�is�we�have�four�universities�there�as�we�speak:�we�have�the�University�of�East�

London�in�a�great�partnership�with�Birkbeck,�we�have�Loughborough�with�boots�on�the�ground�

and�we�have�UCL�Partners,�which�is�a�consortium�of�medical�schools�and�hospitals,�about�to�

move�into�the�East�Village.��There�is�a�suddenly�a�university�cluster�there�bringing�in�a�lot�of�life.��

You�know�Birkbeck�has�a�very�great�cultural�offer�and�is�a�big�cultural�attractor�in�itself.�

�

I�would�say�one�of�the�interesting�things�about�the�University�of�East�London�(UEL)�is�how�

welcoming�it�has�been�to�that,�to�all�of�the�above,�and�has�decided�to�collaborate�and�be�open-

hearted�to�its�benefit,�actually,�rather�than�to�close�down�opportunities.��UEL�has�been�a�great�

catalyst�in�the�area.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Just�before�I�get�into�more�detail,�is�there�anything�either�Neale�or�Paul�

would�like�to�say�on�the�progress�of�house�building�or�the�plans�for�the�Park?��Is�there�anything�

general?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes.��As�you�know,�we�have�secured�one�development�partner�for�the�

Chobham�Manor�site,�which�is�a�site�that�we�hope�in�total�will�provide�about�850�units.��We�are�

working�very�closely�with�them�towards�them�submitting�the�planning�application�for�their�first�

phase�of�housing�very�shortly.��That�first�phase�is�going�to�be�around�260�homes�--�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Beginning�next�year?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes,�it�should�be�onsite�next�year.��One�of�the�things�that�we�have�managed�to�

do�successfully�in�discussion�with�them�particularly�is�to�really�encourage�them�-�again,�there�is�a�

signal�in�this�-�to�maximise�the�amount�of�family�housing�that�is�in�that�development.��Out�of�

Page 42



 

the�260-odd�units,�around�200�will�be�three,�four�or�five-bedroom�properties.��That�is�really�a�

significantly�larger�number�than�one�would�normally�get.�

�

As�I�have�said,�in�terms�of�the�affordable�offer�here,�in�this�first�phase�we�are�running�at�slightly�

under�301.��If�you�take�the�260�units,�we�have�not�settled�this�finally,�but�we�are�looking�at�most�

of�the�affordable�being�for�rent,�so�probably�36�of�the�homes�being�social�rent�and�target�rents,�

35�being�for�affordable�rents�and�a�relatively�small�number�of�shared�ownership�units,�perhaps�8�

shared�ownership�units.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Can�I�just�stop�you�in�your�tracks?��Of�the�rent,�how�many�of�those�are�

family?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��The�majority�of�those�are�the�family�units.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Three,�four�and�five?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No,�they�are�three�and�four,�the�rented�units,�so�something�like�49�or�50�of�

them�are�three�and�four-bedrooms.��I�think�we�are�relatively�pleased�with�that�mix�in�terms�of�

really�pushing�the�family�housing�but�also�pushing�the�rented�element�in�the�affordable.��We�

hope�that�will�go�onsite�next�year.��That�is�where�we�are�with�that.�

�

The�future�phasing�of�that�obviously�to�an�extent�depends�on�how�well�their�first�phase�goes�

and�how�quickly�they�can�sell�the�market�homes.��We�would�hope�that�the�second�phase�will�

follow�on�pretty�sharply�and�we�will�start�talking�to�them�about�the�detail�of�that�as�soon�as�we�

have�this�first�phase�out�of�the�way.�

�

As�I�said,�the�other�thing�that�we�are�looking�to�do�-�and�I�have�talked�about�this�already�-�is�to�

go�to�market�with�a�much�bigger�scheme�on�the�west�side�of�the�Park,�the�housing�that�is�

broadly�in�front�of�the�International�Broadcast�Centre�(IBC)�on�the�other�side�of�Waterden�Road�

and�the�housing�that�is�in�Tower�Hamlets�and�on�the�Sweetwater�site�to�the�south�there.��We�

are�looking�to�start�that�procurement�by�going�out�for�initial�expressions�of�interest�in�October�

and�to�do�a�full�Official�Journal�of�the�European�Union�(OJEU)�procurement�starting�sometime�

probably�around�next�February.��We�are�expecting�that�we�will�be�looking�for�a�significant�

amount�of�private�market�rent�in�that�housing�because�we�are,�as�I�say,�looking�for�developers�

and�partners�who�will�commit�to�a�rapid�delivery�of�that�scheme�as�a�whole.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Is�bringing�it�forward�by�--�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�are�bringing�it�forward�compared�with�our�original�plan.��If�you�take�a�look�

at�both�sites,�originally�we�would�have�completed�everything�by�2029.��We�are�now�looking�to�

complete�by�2023.�

                                                 
1�Following�the�meeting,�the�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation�clarified�that�the�percentage�of�affordable�
housing�in�Phase�1�of�Chobham�Manor�is�just�under�30%. 

Page 43



 

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��How�many�homes�are�you�talking�about�there?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��About�1,600.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Yes.��Of�course,�up�till�now,�I�do�not�really�think�the�affordable�rent�

regime�has�really�bitten,�so�to�speak,�but�it�is�now�really�coming�in.��What�will�that�mean�for�

those�1,600�homes?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��This�is�something�that�we�are�obviously�talking�to�the�boroughs�about�now�

because�we�will�need�to�look�at�a�detailed�offer�in�terms�of�the�affordable�in�the�same�way�as�we�

have�settled�at�Chobham.��It�is�fair�to�say�that�the�boroughs�have�a�number�of�concerns�and�

priorities,�all�of�which�we�have�to�respond�to.��One�is�that�we�should�stick�to�the�agreement�that�

is�embodied�in�our�existing�consent�around�the�relative�shares�of�shared�owners�of�tenure,�so�

shared�ownership,�affordable�rent�and�social�and�target�rents.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��And�that�would�be?��Just�repeat�it�again.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��It�is�a�30:30:40�split�in�the�consent,�30�social,�30�affordable�and�40�

intermediate�and�that�is�embodied�in�our�consent.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��OK.��Is�that�over�the�whole�site?��Is�that�a�60:40�split?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes,�this�is�site-wide.��All�this�relates�to�our�existing�planning�consent,�the�so-

called�Legacy�Communities�Scheme�consent.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��So�40�private�and�60�affordable?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No,�we�have�a�site-wide�target�to�achieve�35%�affordable�housing�across�the�

site�as�a�whole�in�our�consent.��We�have�a�minimum�requirement�that�we�produce�20%�

affordable�housing�across�the�site.��Obviously�we�have�a�viability�review�built�into�the�process�as�

we�bring�forward�each�phase.��When�we�do�those�reviews�we�will�have�to�look�across�the�board�

at�the�mix,�in�terms�of�bedroom�size,�the�total�quantum�of�affordable�housing�and�the�split�

between�the�different�types�of�affordable.��What�I�am�saying�is�the�boroughs�are�saying�to�us�

one�thing�they�want�us�to�stick�to�very�clearly�is�that�30:30:40�split�in�terms�of�the�types�of�

tenure�we�are�bringing�forward.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��A�range?���

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��A�range�between—�

Page 44



 

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��20�to�30.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��20�to�35.��But�our�target�across�the�site�is�35.��

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Across�the�whole�development?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Right.��Our�target�across�the�site�is�35.��That�is�our�planning�consent.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��When�you�say�“site”,�sorry,�is�this�--�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��The�whole�development.��I�mean�site-wise.��I�mean�everything.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��The�whole�lot?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�mean�all�the�housing�development�we�are�planning�to�do�in�the�park�and�we�

have�an�outline�consent�with�section�106�that�has�those�provisions�in�it.��Obviously�as�individual�

schemes�come�forward�we�have�to�make�detailed�applications�or�reserve�matters�applications�

which�specify�exactly�what�we�are�doing�in�terms�of�design�and�everything�else,�but�also�in�

terms�of�the�affordable�housing�offer.��That�is�what�we�have�done�on�site,�we�are�about�to�

complete�that�in�terms�of�the�first�phase�of�Chobham�Manor�and�we�have�started�to�talk�to�the�

boroughs�about�the�new�scheme�that�we�are�planning�for�the�west�side�of�the�park.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��When�you�say�market�rent,�you�want�to�do�a�lot�of�market�rent�there.��

That�is�instead�of�the�homes�for�sale?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes.��We�will�see�what�the�market�wants�to�do,�but�that�is�essentially�for�the�

private�element.��We�are�looking�for�a�greater�element�of�market�renting�within�the�private�

element�of�the�development,�because�we�think�that�will�make�it�more�likely�that�we�can�

accelerate�the�development�and�also�to�an�extent�it�will�mean�that�the�development�will�

compete�less�-�if�you�like�-�with�the�offer�at�Chobham,�which�is�essentially�where�the�market�

units�are�on�offer�for�sale.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Do�you�anticipate�that�the�affordable�rent�is�going�to�be�at�the�upper�

end,�70%,�80%?���

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No,�I�do�not�think�so.��I�think�that�again�is�something�that�the�boroughs�will�

want�us�to�address�through�the�viability�review�mechanism�that�we�have.��Again,�our�planning�

consent�requires�us�to�do�that.��We�have�maximum�levels�for�--�

�

Page 45



 

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Sorry,�your�planning�consent�requires�you?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Our�planning�consent�requires�us�to�look�at�the�percentage�of�market�rent�

applicable�to�the�affordable�rented�units�as�part�of�the�viability�review�mechanism�for�each�zone�

that�we�bring�forward.��We�have�to�have�regard�to�the�adopted�policies�in�the�development�

plan,�but�we�also�have�in�there�some�maximum�levels�for�Chobham,�which�we�set�out�in�the�

planning�consent�and�which�we�are�specifically�asked�to�have�regard�to.�

�

For�example,�the�four�and�five�bedroom�properties�-�and�I�do�stress�these�are�a�maximum�that�

we�are�supposed�to�have�regard�to�-�the�planning�consent�provides�a�cap�of�50%�of�market�

rents�and�for�three�bedrooms�60%�of�market�rents.��I�am�not�saying�those�are�the�levels�we�will�

come�in�at,�because�those�are�specifically�set�out�as�being�agreed�maximum�levels�for�Chobham.��

It�will�obviously�vary�according�to�the�size�of�units.��When�we�talk�to�the�boroughs�now�about�

this�stage�and�when�we�are�looking�at�the�planning�parameters�for�this�development�we�will�be�

looking�at�the�overall�quantum�of�affordable�housing,�the�quantum�of�the�mix,�in�terms�of�unit�

sizes�and�types,�the�split�between�different�types�of�affordable�offer,�and�the�rent�levels�for�the�

affordable�rent�product.��Obviously�to�an�extent�there�are�trade-offs�between�those�elements.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Yes.��In�the�trade-offs�do�you�think�there�might�be�a�much�higher�

proportion�of�one�and�two�bed�flats�at�80%�of�market�rent?��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No,�I�think�we�are�very�committed�to�making�the�initial�scheme�--�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��I�am�not�talking�about�Chobham�Manor�now.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No,�I�am�talking�about�this�scheme�as�well.��All�our�discussion�around�this�is�

that�we�will�continue�to�try�to�drive�up�the�percentage�of�family�housing�on�this�site�as�well.��We�

are�still�looking�in�terms�of�the�way�we�see�this�scheme�at�the�moment.��It�is�still�running�at�

levels�of�family�housing�in�excess�of�60%�of�the�total�product�here.��Again,�we�are�at�an�early�

stage,�but�we�are�very�clear�that�we�do�want�to�maintain�the�emphasis�in�this�scheme�on�family�

housing�and�also�on�providing�a�significant�number�of�traditional�family�houses�as�part�of�the�

scheme.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��That�is�very�reassuring,�that�is�the�1,600.��What�about�the�rest?��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��The�rest�we�are�at�a�very�early�stage�and�frankly,�not�thinking�too�hard�about�at�

the�moment�-�that�is�not�quite�right.��We�are�at�a�much�earlier�stage.��This�is�where�you�get�an�

interplay�between�the�discussions�we�were�having�earlier�about�the�balance�between�jobs�and�

homes�on�the�site.��If�you�look�at�what�we�are�talking�about�here,�we�are�talking�about�really�

completing�the�housing�development�in�the�northern�part�of�the�park.��We�are�talking�about�the�

Chobham�site,�the�sites�in�Hackney�and�the�sites�in�Tower�Hamlets.��The�rest�of�the�housing�

sites�in�the�park,�in�terms�of�the�Legacy�Communities�Scheme�I�think�are�all�in�Newham�and�

Page 46



 

there�is�a�substantial�site�to�the�south�of�the�Orbit.��There�are�other�sites�in�the�Pudding�Mill�

Lane�area�and�there�is�a�Stratford�waterfront�site,�which�I�talked�about�earlier.��In�all�those�cases�

those�are�precisely�the�sites�where�we�are�now�thinking�about�increasing�the�level�of�alternative�

uses�potentially.��For�example,�if�we�are�able�to�come�to�a�deal�whereby�a�major�university�

moves�to�the�site�to�the�south�of�the�orbit�and�the�other�side�of�the�river�there,�then�we�will�not�

do�residential�there.��It�will�mean�there�will�be�a�consequence�that�across�the�park�as�a�whole�we�

will�do�less�residential.���

�

On�the�waterfront�site,�the�waterfront�site�obviously�is�the�site�which�is�closest�to�the�transport.��

In�all�the�planning�stuff�we�have�been�doing�so�far�that�is�where�you�may�see�a�greater�

percentage�of�smaller�units,�because�essentially�that�is�where�we�will�want�to�build�at�

significantly�higher�densities,�because�it�is�right�on�top�of�the�transport,�and�it�would�be�wrong�

not�to�do�that.��That�does�not�mean�there�will�not�be�family�housing�there,�but�plainly�that�is�

where�we�may�go�higher�than�we�are�elsewhere�and�it�butts�up�against�the�commercial�

development�that�we�are�looking�to�see�in�the�International�Quarter.��Again,�the�precise�

disposition�of�that�may�be�effected�by�the�discussion�we�have�just�had,�for�example,�about�the�

cultural�offer�on�the�sites.��At�the�moment�the�consent�is�essentially�a�residential�consent�with�

some�commercial,�largely�leisure�type�uses�along�the�waterfront.��It�may�be�that�we�will�want�to�

see�some�more�of�that�site�used�for�other�purposes.��To�an�extent�that�is�up�in�the�air�at�the�

moment.��What�we�are�very�keen�to�do�is�to�push�on�with�delivering�the�big�scheme,�the�1,600-

unit�scheme�I�have�talked�about.��That�is�our�priority�at�the�moment.����

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Sorry,�Neale,�earlier�you�talked�about�service�charges.��If�you�are�

involved�in�being�a�tenant�either�for�affordable�rent�or�social�rented�homes,�you�do�not�normally�

pay�service�charges.��Are�service�charges�going�to�be�charged�to�those?��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�are�still�working�on�this.��I�think�we�would�not�want�to�do�that.��We�need�to�

work�with�the�developers�we�have�here�to�provide�-�as�far�as�possible�-�an�inclusive�offer,�so�

people�understand�what�the�rent,�what�you�now�have�to�pay�is,�whatever�you�want�to�call�it,�but�

it�is�an�inclusive�all-in�charge.��So�that�they�know�that�upfront.��I�think�that�is�the�approach�

which�the�owners�of�the�Olympic�Village,�East�Village,�have�taken�in�their�offer�to�the�market�of�

the�rented�units�that�they�are�putting�out�there,�that�there�is�one�cost�and�the�only�other�costs�

you�have�to�think�about,�in�terms�of�where�you�live,�is�your�utility�bills.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��So�there�is�one�rent?��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��That�is�what�I�think�we�would�want�to�do.��

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��All�the�affordable�housing�has�one�rent?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes.��I�think�we�would�want�to�do�this,�frankly,�not�just�on�the�affordable�

housing,�we�would�want�to�encourage�the�people�we�are�working�with�to�do�it�on�the�market�

rent�as�well.�

Page 47



 

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Does�that�mean�you�are�including�the�service�charge�in�the�rent?��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes.��You�are�right�to�pick�this�out�as�an�area�where�we�need�to�do�more�work.��

We�need�to�get�this�right.��What�we�cannot�allow�to�happen�is�to�make�commitments�to�the�rent�

levels�being�affordable�and�then�to�sort�of�bung�an�extra�bit�on�top�so�they�are�no�longer�

affordable.��We�have�to�avoid�that�happening.��Equally�we�have�to�make�the�schemes�viable.��

There�is�a�balance�to�be�struck�there,�but�what�we�will�not�do�-�I�emphasise�this�-�we�will�not�

compromise�the�overall�affordability�of�the�units,�either�in�terms�of�the�units�which�we�are�

committed�to�letting�at�target�rents,�or�the�units�that�we�are�letting�at�affordable�rents,�in�the�

context�of�the�caps�I�was�talking�about�a�moment�ago.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��I�do�not�know�enough�about�your�exit�strategy,�but�this�affects�it,�does�it�

not?��If�you�are�not�really�getting�the�value�that�is�needed?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Well,�no.��Obviously�there�are�extreme�positions�here.��If�you�really�wanted�to�

develop�this�site�out�with�primary�regard�simply�to�maximising�eventual�returns�and�you�were�

only�interested�in�that�you�would�adopt�a�very�different�approach�and�strategy�to�the�one�that�

we�are�adopting�here.��You�would�be�much�more�aggressive�about�your�planning�negotiations,�

in�terms�of�affordable�housing.��You�would�probably�be�looking�to�do�development�at�a�much�

slower�rate�so�you�could�benefit�from�increases�in�land�value�overtime.��You�would�not�be�

talking�probably�about�bringing�a�university�to�the�site�or�bringing�cultural�institutions�to�the�

sites,�because�you�would�almost�certainly�get�higher�receipts�in�the�long�run�from�just�purely�

residential�development.���

�

Everything�we�are�doing�does�have�an�impact�on�the�overall�receipts�we�get�and�on�the�values�

of�the�site.��We�think�it�is�the�right�approach,�given�as�I�said�earlier�that�we�are�charged�with�the�

regeneration�of�the�area.��That�is�our�fundamental�statutory�purpose.��I�also�believe�that�we�will�

still,�through�adopting�this�approach�secure�very�significant�receipts�overtime.��All�our�modelling�

suggests�that�-�notwithstanding�the�things�I�have�talked�about;�notwithstanding�our�

commitments�to�affordable�housing�and�now�looking�to�this�-�we�will�still�bring�in�very�

substantial�receipts�as�a�result�of�our�plans.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��One�last�question,�if�you�will�forebear�it.��Just�going�back�to�the�social�

rent,�are�you�talking�about�affordable�rent�at�a�target�of�the�social�-�I�do�not�know,�40%�or�

whatever,�I�do�not�know�what�you�would�call�the�target�rent�-�or�are�you�talking�about�proper�

social�rent�with�security�of�ten�years?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�am�talking�about�proper�social�rent.��That�is�our�commitment�as�I�understand�

it,�to�provide�social�rented�housing.��That�is�built�into�our�consent�because�there�are�some�

particular�factors�that�we�need�to�have�regard�to.��There�are�issues�about�obligations�that�were�

entered�into�when�various�people�were�re-housed�in�the�run�up�to�the�Olympic�Games,�where�

we�have�to�provide�nominations�back,�and�those�clearly�have�to�be�on�all�fours.��They�need�to�

Page 48



 

be�social�rent�essentially.��Also�because,�I�think,�we�have�envisaged�whether�this�will�happen�or�

not,�but�we�also�need�to�look�at�the�potential�that�there�may�be�for�us�to�provide�

accommodation�for�people�to�be�re-housed�from�estates�in�the�area�where�there�are�other�

regeneration�schemes�going.��As�I�say,�that�may�or�may�not�happen,�but�it�was�another�

important�part�of�the�justification�for�including�this�30%�of�social�rent�within�the�overall�

affordable�--�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��35%.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��30%�of�35%�it�is,�let’s�be�clear.��:��I�am�not�trying�to�claim�it�is�more�than�it�is.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��All�right,�thank�you.���

�

James
Cleverly
(AM):��I�will�throw�it�out�between�you,�because�I�am�conscious�that�you�might�

need�a�rest�for�the�vocal�chords.��Paul,�can�you�just�tell�me�where�the�thinking�currently�lies�with�

regard�to�the�fringes�of�the�area?��As�we�have�discussed,�as�well�as�the�things�that�people�

recognise�as�the�Olympic�Park�there�are�a�number�of�areas�spreading�quite�deeply�into�the�

boroughs.��Can�you�just�take�me�through�the�thinking�on�that?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Without�being�too�flippant,�I�think�our�first�thinking�is�to�try�not�to�think�of�them�as�

fringes�anymore�because�the�park�-�and�indeed�our�area�-�is�a�part�of�an�exciting�new�piece�of�

the�City�that�is�developing�in�all�sorts�of�ways.��It�is�jewel,�but�it�is�a�jewel�in�the�crown,�the�

crown�is�quite�important�as�well.��In�practical�terms,�in�physical�terms�we�have�already�been�

talking�quite�a�lot�about�Hackney�Wick.��The�physical�links�into�Hackney�Wick�from�the�park�are�

not�bad.��We�just�opened�H10�bridge�last�week�and�we�have�more�bridges�to�come,�that�is�not�

too�bad.��I�have�mentioned�that�the�businesses�inside�and�outside�are�beginning�to�relate�to�

each�other,�which�is�very�good.��Some�things�about�Hackney�Wick�do�not�work,�we�need�them�

to�work,�both�for�the�businesses�in�iCITY,�the�businesses�that�will�come�into�the�Hackney�Wick�

area,�and�for�the�sake�of�the�people�who�live�in�Hackney�Wick�and�the�people�who�will�come�

into�our�new�neighbourhood.��That�is�why�the�practical�step�we�are�taking�is�to�take�that�station�

development�forward,�which�makes�a�new�entrance�and�creates�disability�access�which�it�is�not�

really�suitable�at�the�moment,�and,�because�we�have�now�raised�the�money�for�that,�it�will�be�

into�planning�later�this�year�and�we�will�motor�ahead.��That�programme�with�a�fair�wind�should�

be�complete�in�time�for�the�businesses�to�arrive�and�the�houses�as�we�built�them.���

�

We�also�are�just�looking�at�what�we�do�in�the�area�around�the�station,�we�know�we�own�land�

there,�and�what�is�the�best�use�for�that�land.��We�are�at�the�moment�doing�a�master�plan�on�

that,�looking�at�the�values.��Do�we�need�to�work�with�other�land�owners�around�the�edge?��

Neale�mentioned�that�people�are�bringing�forward�all�sorts�of�schemes�or�thinking�about�

schemes,�how�do�we�integrate�those�with�what�we�are�doing�and�integrate�with�the�park?��You�

see�Hackney�Wick,�if�you�like,�being�that�whole�piece�of�existing�Hackney�Wick,�the�canal�and�

East�Wick,�our�new�development�in�iCITY.��That�is�one�place.��Then�we�are�also�looking�about�

how�you�do�the�next�piece�of�connectivity.��What�does�not�work�there�is�the�connection�across�

the�A12�to�Victoria�Park�and�north�towards�Homerton,�that�piece.��We�are�looking�at�that.��We�

Page 49



 

are�doing�a�lot�of�active�study�work,�but�I�am�also�pleased�when�we�say�we�are�doing�study�work�

that�we�are�doing�something�as�well�practically�in�the�station.�

�

Moving�further�down,�the�next�piece�that�is�a�problem�is�Bromley-by-Bow.��As�you�probably�

know�there�was�the�ambition�again�to�connect�the�existing�communities�of�Bromley-by-Bow�

across�the�A12�there,�which�is�very�divisive,�that�Bromley-by-Bow�station�to�the�land�which�is�

largely�empty.��A�lot�of�derelict�land�but�there�is�a�Tesco�store�which�people�have�trouble�

getting�to.��A�long�bus�journey�just�to�go100�yards,�if�you�have�your�shopping.��Then�to�

Three�Mills,�which�is�our�land�and�then�you�are�into�the�Inter�Ikea�site,�which�gets�you�into�

Stratford.��Again,�we�are�working�with�the�borough�and�Transport�for�London�(TfL)�and�

London�Underground�to�bring�forward�the�improvements�to�that�station.��It�is�not�big�enough�to�

cope�with�the�number�of�people�who�are�living�there�already.��It�is�not�disability�accessible.��We�

are�working�with�them�on�that.��Then�we�are�re-looking�at�what�can�happen�to�that�district�

centre.��You�may�remember�that�there�was�a�proposal�that�was�built�around�the�idea�of�an�

expanded�Tesco�which�bought�the�bigger�store,�a�cluster�of�smaller�businesses,�new�primary�

school�-�which�is�desperately�needed�in�that�area�-�along�with�new�homes.��All�on�the�canal�side�

setting.��That�fell�through.����That�all�fell�through.��It�got�planning�permission�but�it�failed�at�the�

compulsory�purchase�order�(CPO)�inspector.��We�are�re-looking�at�that.��We�think�that�Tesco�is�

now�locating�there�and�staying�there.��So�what�can�we�do�with�them�and�other�landowners�

around?��We�have�got�a�number�of�studies.���

�

James
Cleverly
(AM):��Specifically�with�regard�to�that,�I�want�to�pull�us�back�north�in�a�second�

in�terms�of�conversation,�but�while�we�have�got�to�the�Bromley-by-Bow,�can�you�just�expand�a�

little�bit�on�why�that�CPO�did�not�come�through,�but�more�importantly�what�we�can�learn�from�

that,�both�in�terms�of�a�revised�plan�for�that�area�and�other�lessons�or�lessons�that�we�learn�

from�other�parts�of�the�area?�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Obviously�it�was�a�previous�organisation,�a�slightly�different�organisation,�the�last�LLDC�

that�promoted�that�CPO.��You�will�refresh�my�memory�probably,�but�as�far�as�I�remember�the�

inspector�was�not�convinced�that�proper�due�regard�had�been�given�to�the�location�of�the�firms�

that�were�there.��There�are�a�number�of�jobs�on�one�of�the�sites.��There�were�a�number�of�jobs�

associated�with�Tescoonline�business,�which�he�thought�might�get�lost.��Actually,�the�Tesco’s�

online�business�jobs�went�anyway.��It�is�about�looking�at�the�business,�one�business�that�was�

already�there�and�finding�a�place�where�they�could�relocate�to,�and�that�was�why�it�fell�through,�

as�I�understand�it.���

�

The�lesson:�it�is�a�big�opportunity�lost,�but�that�is�history.��What�we�have�to�do�is�to�re-look�at�a�

world�where�Tesco�is�probably�not�going�to�move�their�store�because�their�business�model�has�

moved�on.��So�what�can�we�do�with�Tesco�and�the�other�landowners�in�that�area�in�order�to�

bring�forward�a�different�scheme�which�brings�those�derelict�land�portions�back�into�use,�which�

deals�with�the�problem�that�the�A12�carves�through�that�area,�prevents�people�who�live�in�

Bromley-by-Bow�from�getting�to�Stratford�actually�very�easily�and�getting�to�the�Lea.��That�is�

what�we�are�actively�doing�at�the�moment.���

�

Page 50



 

James
Cleverly
(AM):��This�is�one�of�things�that�I�am�keen�to�explore�a�bit�further.��The�

concern�that�has�been�kicking�around�for�quite�some�time,�long�before�Olympic�Games�time,�

and�it�still�is�in�existence.��I�think�some�of�the�questions�highlighted�the�ongoing�concern�about�

this.�I�think�we�all�feel�pretty�confident,�very�confident�that�this�will�be�a�really�wonderful�part�of�

London.��The�concern�however�is�that�we�might�create�a�kind�of�invisible�barrier�which�does�not�

allow�or�encourage�the�existing�communities�in�this�part�of�east�London�to�really�feel�part�of�

this.��And�to�create�or�to�encourage�the�mixing�of�the�new�communities�that�are�going�to�be�

created�there�and�the�existing�communities�around�it�what�is�going�to�be�done�-�I�am�sure�we�

will�come�up�with�a�better�phrase�than�‘fringes’�-�but�what�can�be�done�with�regard�to�both�the�

physical�barriers:�A12,�railway�lines,�etc,�and�the�emotional�barriers�in�terms�of�embedding�this�

in�the�geography�where�it�sits.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��I�have�touched�on�the�physical�connections�and�where�we�are�confident�that�we�are�

okay.��Where�we�can�improve�things.��Where�I�am�worried,�Bromley-by-Bow�is�where�we�have�to�

crack�that,�that�is�why�we�are�working�so�hard�to�think�about�that�piece�of�connectivity.��The�

Leaway,�which�I�will�not�talk�about,�is�another�important�way�of�linking�our�area�in�the�park,�all�

the�way�down�the�spine�of�the�Lee�to�the�Thames�with�linkages�from�all�of�those�communities,�

so�West�Ham,�Plaistow,�Canning�Town�on�the�one�side.��Hackney�Bow,�Bromley-by-Bow�down�

to�sort�of�Poplar�on�the�other�side,�connecting�those�things.��There�is�a�physical�connectivity.��In�

terms�of�the�emotional,�and�I�think�that�is�right,�because�you�can�build�connections�but�people�

will�not�use�them�if�there�is�not�the�connection�in�their�minds�and�in�their�hearts.��That�has�been�

very�much�the�forefront�of�our�thinking�from�the�very�beginning.��Although�the�jobs�piece�that�

we�talked�about�is�about�jobs,�that�has�also�been�about�getting�local�people�to�feel�that�they�

had�a�place�in�the�park�even�when�it�was�shut.��Because�there�will�be�kids�working�there�as�

apprentices,�there�will�be�people�working�there�who�would�go�back�into�their�communities�and�

be�saying,�“Well,�look,�I’m�in�the�Park�already�doing�this�job”.��It�was�about�a�point,�but�it�was�

also�about�having�the�sense�that�people�were�already�in�there.��It�is�why�during�the�period�of�the�

Park�closure�we�spent�a�lot�of�time�on�tours,�whether�it�was�boats�or�buses�or�the�Orbit�tours,�

not�just�to�a�wider�public�but�we�did�an�awful�lot�of�work�with�local�communities,�local�schools.��

We�still�have�been�doing�boat�trips�for�schools,�even�though�they�were�closed�to�the�public�just�

to�get�people�in�there�even�before�it�was�open.�

�

Then�a�programme�of�projects,�which�we�call�the�unfolding�Park�so�that�people�would�not�feel�

in�the�communities�around�that�one�day�it�was�shut�and�the�next�day�it�was�open.��I�am�very�

pleased�it�is�open,�but�they�would�have�found�reasons�already�for�wanting�to�kind�of�pile�in�

there.��That�is�why�it�has�been�very�encouraging�to�see�the�Copper�Box�filling�up�with�gym�

memberships�or�schools�using�the�Copper�Box�or�people�drifting�in,�families,�to�use�the�

Copper�Box�informally,�because�we�had�spent�quite�a�lot�of�time�preparing�them�to�do�that.��

Something�like�our�Paralympic�programme,�which�is�partly�about�grabbing�that�desire�that�

people�had�once�they�discover�all�these�Paralympic�sports�to�do�them.��We�have�a�Paralympic�

programme�which�takes�those�sports�out�into�clubs�and�schools�and�the�surrounding�

communities�in�order�that�people�can�have�taster�sessions�and�get�interested�in�them�and�follow�

them,�whether�they�are�able-bodied�or�disabled.��One�of�the�reasons�for�that�is�clearly�to�

capitalise�on�Paralympic�sports,�but�another�reason�is�to�say�you�can�do�some�of�these�things�in�

the�Copper�Box�afterwards,�or�you�can�do�these�things�in�the�park�afterwards.��Right�from�a�year�

Page 51



 

back,�two�years�back,�to�be�saying�to�people�there�are�all�sorts�of�things�that�you�can�do�in�the�

park�that�will�link�your�school,�your�club,�your�community�with�this�park.��I�can�give�you�other�

examples�about�horticulture�or�other�activities.���

�

James
Cleverly
(AM):��One�of�the�things�that�strikes�me,�and�I�do�not�pretend�to�know�the�

area�very,�very�well,�but�I�know�a�bit.��There�is�some�fantastic�housing�stock�in�the�local�area,�

and�being�slightly�euphemistic�there�is�some�less�fantastic�housing�stock,�pre-existing�housing�

stock�in�the�area.��In�terms�of�your�relationship�with�the�neighbouring�boroughs�and�taking�the�

points�that�Nicky�[Gavron�AM]�discussed�at�length�and�some�of�the�principles�that�I�think�are�

very,�very�welcome,�in�terms�of�the�redevelopment�of�the�park�site,�how�is�your�relationship�with�

those�boroughs,�in�terms�of�exporting�some�of�those�philosophies�into�the�surrounding�area,�so�

there�is�not�a�hard�and�visible,�“Oh,�this�is�where�it�starts”?��Are�the�ideas,�and�we�talked�about�

the�family�homes�with�gardens,�there�has�been�a�lot�of�lost�green�space�in�the�areas�around�that�

and�some�of�the�newer�developments�-�I�say�‘newer’�-�over�the�last�few�decades.��Are�the�

boroughs�listening�to�these�ideas,�because�I�think�they�are�very�welcome�and�they�are�not�

necessarily�ideas�that�we�have�seen.���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��In�terms�of�the�green�spaces�and�the�environments,�yes,�we�have�a�good�relationship�

with�the�boroughs�and�with�some�of�the�key�housing�providers.��One�of�the�really�important�

things�here�is�not�to�think�that�everything�special�is�inside�and�there�is�nothing�outside.���

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Absolutely.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��That�there�is�a�two-way�learning.��I�am�really�interested�at�the�moment�in�working�with�

some�of�those�housing�associations�who�have�understood�the�value�of�green�space�and�how�you�

use�green�space�to�buy�people�into�the�area.��What�I�mean�is�to�help�people�be�attached�to�their�

area.��To�get�young�people�involved�in�the�upkeep�of�their�estates,�loving�the�green�spaces�and�

using�them�rather�than�wreaking�them,�as�the�stereotype�goes.��We�have�some�stuff�to�learn�

from�them�and�bring�into�the�park�as�we�open�up�the�park,�this�global�park,�but�a�park�with�all�

sorts�of�small�spaces.��The�risk�we�have�is�that�we�get�kids�from�all�four�directions�coming�in�and�

fighting�in�the�park.��Let�us�stop�that.��We�have�an�awful�lot�to�learn�from�the�East�Thames�

Housing,�Poplar�Housing�and�Regeneration�Community�Association�and�others�in�terms�of�how�

they�have�used�green�space�creatively�in�their�management�and�development.��We�are�busy�

building�on�those�relationships�actively�now.��That�was�part�of�why�we�ran�the�horticulture.��

Community�Links�runs�a�thing�called�Growing�Links�for�us�and�it�was�to�say,�“Here�is�this�park�

and�here�is�the�green�space�in�your�estate.��What�can�you�learn�from�each�other?��What�can�you�

do?��What�links�can�you�make�there?”��We�must�not�suck�the�life�out�of�what�is�around�and�we�

must�not�imagine�that�creativity�does�not�lie�outside;�it�does.���

�

��I�think�one�of�the�things�we�are�really�keen�on�is�the�idea�that�we�have�a�park�that�we�are�

going�to�manage�and�we�have�to�do�it�to�high�quality,�but�we�need�to�allow�life�to�flood�into�it.��

That�is�what�we�are�actively�engaged�with,�and�that�is�what�these�projects�have�been�about.���

�

Page 52



 

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Just�to�endorse�everything�Paul�has�said.��He�has�talked�about�some�of�the�

local�housing�associations�and�providers.��I�think�if�you�go�down�to�Poplar�now�and�look�at�what�

the�Housing�and�Regeneration�Community�Association�(HARCA)�has�done�there,�it�is�incredibly�

impressive.��The�way�in�which�they�have�developed�new�housing,�the�way�in�which�they�have,�I�

think,�done�great�things�with�open�space�and�green�space,�the�way�that�they�built�in�community�

facilities,�the�way�they�have�bought�health�facilities�in�and�the�way�they�have�done�that�with�

huge�involvement�from�local�people.��We�would�be�silly�not�to�learn�from�them,�there�are�others�

as�well,�but�we�have�spent�a�lot�of�time�going�around�Poplar,�talking�to�Steve�Stride�[Chief�

Executive,�Poplar�HARCA]�and�others�at�the�HARCA�and�I�hope�we�will�see�them�involved�in�the�

park�as�well.���

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��You�both�talked�about�the�great�news�about�

Hackney�Wick�station�and�the�funding,�but�we�were�told�at�a�previous�meeting�that�you�were�

looking�for�£10.5�million�to�take�the�development�forward.��This�was�around�Hackney�Wick�and�

Fish�Island.��The�announcement�that�the�Mayor�made�was�about�eight�point�something�funding.��

Can�you�just�put�on�record�why�it�was�thought�to�be�£10�million�and�we�are�now�celebrating�

£8�million?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��It�is�£10�million.��We�have�some�other�sources�of�funding�for�the�scheme,�

including�from�the�Op-Thamesfunding,�which�was�funding�that�was�secured�from�the�Olympic�

Delivery�Authority�(ODA)�as�part�of�the�Olympic�Games.��To�that�extent,�that�part�of�the�legacy�

continues.��By�putting�together�all�our�packages�of�money�we�do�have�enough�for�the�scheme,�

which�is�over�£10�million.���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��It�is�just�over�£10�million.��The�£8.5�million�filled�the�funding�gap,�although�the�funding�

gap�was�bigger�than�what�we�had�to�start�with.��We�now�have�the�complete�package�of�money.���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��We�already�had�the�£1.5�million.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Oh,�it�--�was�factually�correct�at�£10.5�million?���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��And�that�eight�point�something�is�going�to�be�made�

with�other�--�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes,�with�OpTEMS�funding.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��No,�that�is�good�for�the�record.���

�

Page 53



 

John
Biggs
(AM):��Do�not�believe�a�word�the�Mayor�says.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Well,�he�does�not�do�detail.��The�Mayor�does�not�do�

details,�so�that�is�why�we�have�to�speak�to�these�well�informed�individuals.�

�

You�have�talked�about�people�returning,�and,�I�will�just�get�absolutely�slaughtered�if�I�do�not�

talk�about�the�allotments.��Is�that�you,�Paul?��You�have�reserved�their�site?���

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��There�are�two�sites�on�the�park�where�there�are�allotments.��One�is�Eton�Manor�and�

one�is�to�the�east�of�Pudding�Mill.��We�are�busy�building�one�lot�at�the�moment,�the�north�lot,�

and�the�second�lot�we�will�start�building�when�that�land�becomes�available.���

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�think�that�is�right.��Although,�I�believe�Waltham�Forest�Council�are�considering�

whether�they�can�persuade�some�of�the�allotment�holders�not�to�return�to�the�park.��That�is�

entirely�a�matter�for�them�and�not�for�us,�because�we�are�a�planning�authority,�and�as�far�as�we�

are�concerned�at�the�moment�the�existing�planning�consent�is�for�allotments.��

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��It�is�not�Waltham�Forest’s�allottees�[allotment�

holders].��They�belong�to�the�site.��They�were�only�sort�of�put�out�to�pasture�in�Waltham�Forest.��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��But�it�is�Waltham�Forest�--�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��I�think�a�promise�is�nothing�to�do�with�

Waltham�Forest.�The�promise�comes�from�you.��

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��One�of�the�sites�to�which�they�would�return,�that�Paul�has�referred�to,�is�in�

Waltham�Forest.��

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��The�park,�our�area�of�the�park�contains�a�little�triangular�land�at�the�north,�where�you�

are�pointing,�which�is�Eton�Manor,�and�that�is�where�--�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��It�is�within�the�park?��

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��Yes.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��It�is�the�other�side�of�the�A12.��It�is�in�our�ownership,�but�it�is�in�

Waltham�Forest.��

�

Page 54



 

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��We�are�building�allotments�there�as�we�speak,�that�is�in�Waltham�Forest,�we�are�

building�allotments�right�now.��Waltham�Forest�have�always�said�that�they�did�not�wish�there�to�

be�allotments�there.���

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��It�is�for�another�meeting,�because�I�have�looked�at�

the�New�London�Development�Corporation�(NLDC)�board�meetings�and�I�noticed,�and�I�should�

ask�him,�the�Waltham�Forest�leader�has�not�been�at�these�meetings.��Is�it�that�there�is�nothing�

to�talk�about,�convergence�about�Leyton,�and�the�hockey�centre?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��I�have�talked�to�Chris�[Chris�Robbins,�Leader,�Waltham�Forest�Council]�on�

several�occasions�and�been�around�Waltham�Forest�and�kept�in�touch�with�him.��I�know�that�

Dennis�Hone�[Chief�Executive,�London�Legacy�Development�Corporation]�in�particular�has�met�

with�Shifa�Mustafa�[Deputy�Chief�Executive,�London�Borough�of�Waltham�Forest]�to�discuss�a�

range�of�issues�to�do�with�Waltham�Forest.��We�are�absolutely�committed�to�working�with�them,�

and�I�think�we�have�pretty�good�relationship�with�them.��The�issue�around�the�allotments�is�one�

where,�frankly,�it�is�not�for�us�to�speak,�because�Waltham�Forest�had�never�wanted�to�have�

allotments�on�Eton�Manor.��That�continues�to�be�their�position.��Our�position�is�that�our�

planning�consent�at�the�moment�requires�us�to�put�allotments�on�Eton�Manor.��That�is�our�

current�position,�but�if�the�council�wants�to�do�something�about�that�they�will�have�to�do�

something�about�it.���

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��so�your�promise�for�the�return�meant�nothing�then?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Well,�no.��Our�promise�means�everything.�

�

Paul
Brickell
(Executive
Director
for
Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships,


LLDC):��We�are�building�allotments�now.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��We�are�building�the�allotments.��We�are�doing�it,�we�are�sticking�by�what�we�

said�we�would�do.��It�is�the�local�authority�that�does�not�want�us�to�do�that.���

�

John
Biggs
(AM):����Mine�is�one�sentence,�that,�just�for�the�record�there�are�continuing�

discussions�about�the�Traveller�community�as�well,�of�course.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Oh,�of�course.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��I�have�been�very�involved�with�that�for�it�feels�like�a�decade�now.�

�

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Yes,�you�have.�

�

John
Biggs
(AM):��That�is�a�very�long�sentence.��But�we�do�not�need�to�discuss�it�here�today,�

but�for�the�record�it�is�an�ongoing�complication�that�the�corporation�has.��

Page 55



 

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Going�back�to�Neale,�I�just�want�to�be�absolutely�clear�for�the�record�that�

on�affordable�housing�it�will�not�be�the�same�configuration,�but�let�us�take,�across�the�site,�for�

every�100�homes�between�7�and�12�will�be�social�rent,�between�7�and�12�will�be�affordable�rent�

and�between�7�and�12�will�be�part�rent,�part�buy.��The�other�80�or�65%�will�be�either�market�

rent�or�a�mixture�of�that�and�sale.���

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Assuming�-�as�I�do�-�that�you�are�using�the�20�to�35�as�the�range�--�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��I�am.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��--�then�yes,�that�is�absolutely�right.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��Because�I�think�we�need�to�put�the�rented�homes�into�perspective.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��No,�no,�no�that�is�absolutely�right.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��There�are�not�a�great�many.�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):���It�is�our�objective�to�get�to�the�upper�end�of�that�range,�because�that�is�our�

target�and�that�is�what�we�will�seek�to�do,�subject�only�to�making�sure�that�what�we�are�doing�is�

viable�and�that�we�can�get�people�to�come�and�build�the�housing.���

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��It�could�just�be�seven�social�rented�homes�out�of�100.���

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Yes,�it�could,�but�I�do�not�think�it�will.��I�do�not�think�there�is�any�prospect�that�

we�will�end�up�at�the�20%�number.�

�

Nicky
Gavron
(AM):��It�could�be�12�then?�

�

Neale
Coleman
(Deputy
Chairman,
LLDC,
and
Advisor
for
Olympic
and
Paralympic


Legacy,
GLA):��Indeed.��But�let�us�be�clear,�that�is�part�of�an�affordable�offer.��I�mean,�the�

affordable�offer�as�a�whole�is,�as�you�know,�significantly�bigger�than�that.��It�is�the�case,�but�in�

the�great�majority�of�developments�that�are�taking�place�at�the�moment�there�are�not�any�such�

homes.��I�am�just�pointing�it�out�that�if�you�want�to�look�at�what�we�are�doing,�and�I�think�for�

good�reasons�that�I�have�talked�about,�in�terms�of�the�obligations�that�we�have�to�the�past,�we�

have�a�planning�consent�that�does�require�us�to�provide�a�significant�proportion�of�the�

affordable�housing�we�build�at�social�rent.���

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��Thank�you�very�much�for�that.��

�

Page 56



 

Jennette
Arnold
OBE
(Deputy
Chair):��Excellent.�

�

Gareth
Bacon
(Chairman):
��I�am�going�to�bring�that�to�a�close.��Members,�can�I�ask�that�the�

Committee�note�the�report�and�the�discussion�today�and�the�LLDC�submission�which�was�sent�

to�us�and�will�be�amended�to�the�records�and�we�thank�you�for�that.��Can�I�thank�the�guests�for�

attending�and�giving�evidence.�

�

�

�

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Summary
List
of
Actions�


Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
16
December
2013�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�action�arising�from�a�previous�meeting�of�the�Regeneration�Committee.�





2.
 Recommendation
�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
completed
action
arising
from
a
previous
meeting
of
the


Committee.


Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
8
October
2013.


Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action





6.
 London
Legacy
Development
Corporation

 �

�

�


 During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�the�Committee�

noted�the�undertaking�by�the�London�Legacy�

Development�Corporation�to�provide�further�information�

on�the�LLDC’s�relationship�with�its�contractors�–�and�the�

agencies�that�supply�its�contractors�–�regarding�their�use�

of�zero-hour�contracts.�




The�Chair�of�the�

Committee�wrote�to�

the�LLDC�on�16�

October�2013.�

Executive�

Director�for�

Regeneration�

and�Community�

Partnerships,�

LLDC.�Attached�

at�Appendix
1.�







3.
 Legal
Implications



3.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�

�

4.
 Financial
Implications



4.1 �� There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�



�
�

Agenda Item 4

Page 59



        

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
Appendix�1�-
Letter�from�the�LLDC�dated�11�November�2013.


�
�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�Minutes�from�the�Regeneration�Committee�Meeting�on�8�October�2013�
�

Contact�Officer:� Laura�Pelling,�Committee�Officer�
Telephone:� 020�7983�5526��

Email:� laura.pelling@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 60



LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place,

Montfichet Road, London, E20 1EJ

T  +44 (0) 20 3288 1800

F  +44 (0) 20 3288 1801

www londonlegacy co uk

11 November 2013

Gareth Bacon AM 
City Hall
The Queen’s Walk
London, SE1 2AA

Dear Gareth,

Re: Voluntary Accord between LLDC and its contractors

Many thanks for your letter dated 16 October following our appearance at the 
meeting of the London Assembly Regeneration Committee on 8 October.
In your letter, you requested information on the voluntary accord the London 
Legacy Development Corporation has with its contractors – as well as the
agencies that supply its contractors – regarding zero hour contracts, London 
Living Wage and PAYE tax. 

Our approach 

The Legacy Corporation is committed to supporting the Mayor’s Convergence 
agenda and the development of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park is intended to 
have a significant impact on the surrounding boroughs. To help achieve this we 
have invested heavily in our work programmes to act as a blueprint for the wider 
area by:

! Using our procurement process to assess the ability of bidders’ proposals
to deliver socio-economic benefits for the local area and embedding such
proposals contractually

! Developing  interventions with Borough partners, Job Centre Plus and the
GLA to help ensure consistent best practice and support contractors in
delivering their obligations

! Offering a successful apprenticeship programme

! Providing funding to support demand-led pre-employment training to
complement existing job brokerage schemes. This helps to ensure that
local people are equipped to take advantage of the employment
opportunities as they are created on the Park.

For example, the Legacy Corporation has committed to securing apprenticeship 
opportunities across the site with a peak of 60 apprentices - the highest number 
on a single site in London in 2013. Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL), the 
operator of Copper Box Arena, has committed to recruiting 36 apprentices over 
their ten year contract and Balfour Beatty Workplace has committed to recruiting 
50 apprentices during the lifetime of their Estates, Facilities and Management 
contract. 
We also encourage all our contractors to recruit through the local borough job 
brokerages who have strong links into local communities. This helps to ensure 
that benefits really are being delivered to the residents of surrounding 
communities. 

!""#$%&'()

Page 61



 LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place,

Montfichet Road, London, E20 1EJ

T  +44 (0) 20 3288 1800

F  +44 (0) 20 3288 1801

www londonlegacy co uk

Our contractors

The Legacy Corporation requires its Tier 1 construction contractors to pay the 
London Living Wage (LLW), or Construction Working Rule Agreement (CWRA) 
rates (depending on which is the highest). 
Within the contracts the Legacy Corporation holds with Tier 1 contractors it is 
stated that, where possible, Tier 1 contractors should encourage their 
subcontractors to pay LLW and CWRA rates to their workforces.  

Labour Agency Vendor Accord (LAVA)

The construction industry often uses a number of recruitment agencies to supply 
construction workers to sites, meaning working conditions and wage levels can 
vary. In response to this issue, the Legacy Corporation encouraged a model, led 
by BAM Nuttall (a Tier 1 contractor) to help standardise wages across the Park. 
The Labour Agency Vendor Accord (LAVA) was the result. 
Through LAVA, agencies supplying BAM Nuttall are vetted to ensure that they 
adhere to the accord’s basic principles including:

! Workers are on PAYE contracts of employment

! Workers receive CWRA rates (or London Living Wage)

! Delivery of Legacy Corporation priority theme commitments 
(employment for targeted groups including local, BAME, women, disabled 
and previously unemployed). 

Agencies bidding for work were approved provided they could fulfil these 
commitments. Minimum pay rates were set to ensure that there are no 
discrepancies between agency workers undertaking the same job.  
The Legacy Corporation encourages other Tier 1 contractors on site to adopt 
this model and both Careys and Balfour Beatty (both Tier 1 contractors) use 
similar models to regulate their labour agencies. 
The Legacy Corporation has worked hard to understand the use of zero hours 
contracts on the Park and has an undertaking from its Tier 1 contractors that 
their workforces are not on such contracts. 

I trust that the above information addresses the questions you raised in your 
letter. 

If you require any further information, please do not hesitate to get in touch. 

Yours sincerely, 

Paul Brickell,
Executive Director, Regeneration and Community Partnerships  

Page 62



 

                                                                  

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

Subject:�Outer
London
Fund



Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee


Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

�




1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�proposes�that�the�Committee�discusses

guests.�





2.
 Recommendations�
�

2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
summary
of
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
Deptford,


attached
at
Appendix
1.






2.2 That
the
Committee
notes
the
report


Outer
London
Fund.








3.
 Background





3.1 At�its�meeting�on�8�October,�the�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�following�two�meeting�slots�to�

examine�the�Outer�London�Fund

centre�in�receipt�of�the�Fund,�followed�by�a�

Fund�with�a�range�of�invited�guests

�

3.2 Further�to�the�meeting�on�8�October,�the�Chair

the�Committee’s�site�visit�on�14�November.

�

3.3 A�report�attached�at�Appendix

visit�to�Deptford�town�centre

discussion.�














                                                                     

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Outer
London
Fund


Regeneration
Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat� Date:
16



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�

proposes�that�the�Committee�discusses�the�Outer�London�Fund�

That
the
Committee
notes
the
summary
of
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
Deptford,


That
the
Committee
notes
the
report
and
the
discussion
with
invited
guests

At�its�meeting�on�8�October,�the�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�following�two�meeting�slots�to�

examine�the�Outer�London�Fund.�It�agreed�to�use�its�November�meeting�for�a�site�visit�to�a�town�

centre�in�receipt�of�the�Fund,�followed�by�a�wider�discussion�at�the�December�meeting�

guests.��

Further�to�the�meeting�on�8�October,�the�Chairman�and�Deputy�Chair�agreed�to�visit�Deptford�for�

the�Committee’s�site�visit�on�14�November.�

Appendix�1�provides�a�summary�of�the�issues�raised�during�the�Committee’s�

�on�14�November.�This�information�will�inform�

 

16
December
2013


�(OLF)�with�expert�

That
the
Committee
notes
the
summary
of
the
Committee’s
site
visit
to
Deptford,


discussion
with
invited
guests
regarding
the


At�its�meeting�on�8�October,�the�Committee�agreed�to�use�its�following�two�meeting�slots�to�

It�agreed�to�use�its�November�meeting�for�a�site�visit�to�a�town�

December�meeting�about�the�

eputy�Chair�agreed�to�visit�Deptford�for�

provides�a�summary�of�the�issues�raised�during�the�Committee’s�

form�the�Committee’s�

Agenda Item 5

Page 63



        

 

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration��



4.1 The�following�guests�have�been�invited�to�the�Committee’s�meeting:�

• Debbie�Jackson,�Assistant�Director,�Regeneration,�GLA;�

• Alex�Hearn,�Regeneration�and�Growth�team,�LB�Brent;�

• Mark�Billington,�Head�of�Economic�Development�and�Research,�LB�Harrow;�

• Neil�McInroy,�Chief�Executive,�Centre�for�Local�Economic�Strategies;�and�

• Will�McKee,�Chair,�Outer�London�Commission.�

�

4.2 The�meeting�will�look�to�cover�the�following�issues:�

• The�set-up�of�the�OLF,�including�why�it�was�introduced,�the�project�selection�process,�
timescales,�and�match�funding;��

• Round�1,�including�its�aims�and�the�extent�to�which�these�were�met,�key�lessons�and�
challenges;�

• Round�2,�including�its�aims�and�the�extent�to�which�these�have�been�met,�learning�applied�
from�Round�1,�key�challenges;�

• Evaluation�of�the�Fund,�including�the�choice�of�criteria,�boroughs’�experiences,�and�how�this�
will�inform�future�projects;�

• Longer�term�impact�of�the�Fund,�and�the�next�steps�for�boroughs�and�the�Mayor.�

�

5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�



6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1 There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

�
Appendix�1�–�Summary�of�Site�Visit�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:��None�
�

Contact�Officer:� Jo�Sloman,�Scrutiny�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4942�

E-mail:� jo.sloman@london.gov.uk��

�

Page 64



Regeneration
Committee
site
visit
to
Deptford
town
centre
and
Goldsmiths,
14
November

2013




Attendees

Assembly�Members�� Gareth�Bacon�(Chairman),�Jennette�Arnold�(Deputy�Chair),�James�Cleverly��
�
Assembly�staff� Richard�Derecki,�Jo�Sloman,�Sheena�Craig,�William�Bradley,�Martha�Mingay,�

Duncan�Maclean�
�
Visiting
 Gavin�Plaskitt�(Programme�Manager,�LB�Lewisham)��

Sandra�Plummer�(Project�Manager,�LB�Lewisham)��
(Claire�Pritchard�Renewal�Manager,�Director�Greenwich�Cooperative�
Development�Agency,�GCDA)��
(Mel�Taylor:�Renewal�Manager,�Greenwich�Cooperative�Development�Agency,�
GCDA)�
Thanh�Uong�(Two�Hungry�Bees)�
Paul�Harper�(South�Area�Manager,�Regeneration,�GLA)�
Erin�Byrne�(Senior�Project�Officer,�Regeneration,�GLA)��
Patrick�Loughrey�(Warden,�Goldsmiths�College)�
Liz�Bromley�(Registrar�and�Secretary,�Goldsmiths�College)�



Overview
of
visit

The�Committee�visited�Deptford�to�learn�about�how�the�Outer�London�Fund�has�been�used�to�support�
regeneration�on�the�High�street�and�surrounding�area.�The�visit�began�with�a�briefing�and�discussion�at�
Deptford�Lounge,�followed�by�a�tour�of�the�High�Street,�and�a�walk�through�Route�1�to�New�Cross.�The�
Committee�also�visited�Goldsmiths�College�to�hear�about�the�University’s�role�in�the�area.�This�
document�provides�a�summary�of�the�visit.��




Outer
London
Fund



The�OLF�in�Deptford�

• Deptford�High�Street�was�chosen�for�the�OLF�because�it�ties�the�area�together.�It�is�a�successful�
trading�street�but�there�were�negative�public�perceptions�due�to�2-way�traffic,�parking,�and�chaotic�

market�stall�arrangements.�Footways�were�disintegrating�and�electrical�bollards�created�clutter,�

producing�an�unattractive�market�environment.�Surveys�carried�out�prior�to�the�OLF�bid�revealed�
that�there�was�a�42%�increase�in�footfall�to�the�High�Street�on�market�days�which�highlighted�the�

benefit�that�the�market�provides�for�the�street.�

• Other�strands�of�work�include:�
o Parking�improvements�–�the�introduction�of�a�Restricted�Parking�Zone�(RPZ)�and�simpler�

signage�requirements�associated�with�this�type�of�parking�regime�will�preserve�the�

characteristics�of�the�High�Street�by�seeking�to�facilitate�convenience�shopping.��Shops�in�
the�street�are�largely�small�independents�who�rely�on�shoppers�who�park�for�short�periods�

to�purchase�specialist�products�in�large�quantities�that�are�difficult�and�heavy�to�carry.�

Enforcers�will�explain�changes�to�shopkeepers�and�customers.�
o Shop�fronts�–�the�Council�will�provide�a�limited�number�of�shops�with�renewed�fronts�and�

display�units�to�forecourt�areas.��Those�chosen�are�either�shops�that�have�had�to�reduce�

their�frontage�to�improve�movement�along�the�High�Street�or�which�have�an�historical�
interest.�

o GCDA�carried�out�a�questionnaire/�consultation�of�the�High�Street.�This�led�to:�

§ Plans�to�animate�the�street�with�art,�and�change�previously�segregated�uses.�
Projects�have�included�poets�on�the�High�Street.�

Appendix 1 

Page 65



§ Food�tours�to�bring�a�new�audience�to�Deptford�to�celebrate�the�cuisine�and�

ingredients�used�by�local�communities.�Food�fairs�have�received�extensive�media�

coverage,�both�locally�and�internationally�(eg.�Guadeloupe�tour).�
§ A�new�group�for�businesses;�Deptford�Society.�It�is�now�a�legal�body�representing�

local�businesses,�and�it�is�planning�a�Christmas�event�on�7�December�that�will�

correspond�with�the�monthly�food�market:�Giffin�Square�Food�Fair�
§ Work�to�integrate�2�high�street�websites�(My�Deptford�High�Street�and�Deptford�

High�Street).�

§ An�apprenticeship�programme,�which�in�2013�has�involved�training�for�people�
interested�in�starting�up�a�business�through�market�trading.��The�scheme�was�

derived�when�Lewisham�Council�identified�that�most�market�traders�are�over�50�

and�aimed�to�entice�a�younger�generation�into�market�trading�to�help�sustain�the�
profession�in�the�longer�term;�the�second�round�was�aimed�primarily�at�food�

businesses.��The�training�programme�is�about�to�become�accredited�and�in�total�

14�candidates�benefited�from�the�scheme�with�a�number�still�trading�in�the�
borough’s�markets.��Some�have�even�progressed�to�host�Supper�Clubs�and�pop�up�

restaurants.�

§ The�Committee�met�Thanh�who�had�not�previously�produced�food�commercially.�
Through�the�programme�he�gained�positive�publicity�via�Twitter�and�facebook�and�

began�to�use�this�form�of�marketing�himself.��He�recently�extended�his�experience�

from�a�market�stall�sales�to�an�event�at�the�Catford�Supper�Club,�a�pop-up�
restaurant�in�Catford.��

• The�Committee�heard�that�Lewisham�would�not�have�carried�out�these�activities�without�the�OLF.�It�

had�previously�spent�£26�million�upgrading�key�infrastructure�in�the�town�centre,�but�financial�
pressures�on�the�local�authority�meant�there�was�no�funding�to�address�the�issues�on�the�High�

street.�LB�Lewisham�commented�that�the�OLF�provides�an�opportunity�to�think�about�what�works�in�

regeneration.��
• Legacies�of�the�project�will�include�the�9-10�market�trainees�who�are�still�trading�(out�of�20),�

culinary�tours�(which�will�continue�on�a�fee-paying�basis),�and�the�new�civic�organisation�–�Deptford�

Society.�While�the�OLF�funding�is�proportionately�small,�it�has�‘punched�above�its�weight’.��
• The�Council’s�objective�is�for�OLF�funds�to�support�works�and�initiatives�that�can�become�self-

sustaining�therefore�creating�long-term�vibrancy.��

Wider�regeneration�in�Deptford��

• LB�Lewisham’s�Masterplan�for�North�Lewisham�included�the�upgrading�of�Route�1�–�a�pedestrian�

and�cycling�route�–�which�connects�Deptford�High�Street�and�New�Cross�via�an�attractive�traffic�free�

route.�Route�1,�including�Douglas�Way,�Margaret�McMillan�and�Fordham�Parks,�was�previously�
under�used�due�to�fear�of�crime�and�reduced�accessibility.�Following�consultation�and�renewal,�it�has�

now�become�a�public�destination.�A�new�school�has�been�amalgamated�and�rebuilt�within�Fordham�

Park�and�a�previously�unattractive�underpass�has�been�renewed,�in�partnership�with�local�artist,�
Heather�Burrell.���The�route�also�connects�the�Waldron�Health�Centre�and�major�transport�

connections�at�New�Cross�and�New�Cross�Gate�stations�that�now�provide�a�new�Overground�service.


• Several�other�regeneration�projects�have�recently�been�completed�or�are�underway,�including:�
Upgraded�leisure�centre,�with�25m�metre�pool�and�gym�facilities;�Deptford�Lounge�(combining�a�

new�library,�community�hub�and�school�facilities);�new�housing�(including�housing�of�different�

sizes);�Deptford�Station,�part-funded�by�the�Council�and�Network�Rail,�as�a�key�part�of�the�town’s�
infrastructure�that�will�incorporate�a�private�development�adjacent�to�the�station�(by�developers�

Cathedral�Group�&�United�House).


�

Page 66



Other�issues��

• Creative�groups�–�Deptford�has�many�creative�communities�and�there�is�currently�a�shortage�of�

creative�space.�Space�may�come�at�a�higher�premium�as�the�area�improves.�The�Council�is�keen�to�
preserve�space�and�as�well�as�providing�new�space�within�Resolution�Way�which�formed�part�of�the�

New�Deptford�Lounge�mixed�use�development�(primary�school/civic�facilities/�new�housing�and�

studio�space).��It�is�looking�at�interim�spaces�under�the�railway�arches�and�more�permanent�provision�
in�the�locality.��

• Partnerships�–�the�Council�works�closely�with�the�Albany�Theatre�and�is�currently�exploring�
opportunities�for�the�Albany�to�animate�public�space�around�Route�1�in�Douglas�Way�square.�

�

Goldsmiths
College


• 70�per�cent�of�the�College’s�students�have�been�from�London,�historically.�Its�student�body�is�now�
more�diverse,�with�more�students�applying�from�outside�London.�

• The�College�is�looking�at�converting�shops�it�owns�on�the�High�Street�for�use�as�incubator�space�for�
young�businesses�in�the�community.�The�College�invites�community�groups�and�schools�(Lewisham�
College�prize-giving)�to�use�its�space,�and�share�its�vision�for�young�people�in�the�community.��

• Goldsmiths�has�a�long�history�in�New�Cross,�and�it�seeks�to�use�its�estate�to�showcase�how�the�area�

has�changed.�Its�courses�have�developed�in�light�of�community�interests;�it�provides�performing�arts�
and�creative�courses�that�resonate�with�young�people,�and�the�College�has�also�developed�its�own�

record�label.�

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                  

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458


 

Subject:�Regeneration
Programme






Report
to:
 Regeneration
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of


This
report
will
be
considered







1.
 Summary




1.1 This�reports�sets�out�the�Committee’s�

�
�

2.
 Recommendation�


2.1 That
the
Committee
agrees




�

3.
 Background




3.1 At�the�Assembly’s�Annual�Meeting�on�1

2013/14�was�agreed.�
�

3.2 The�Regeneration�Committee�

on�26�June�2013;�it�also�agreed�the�topics�for�its�in
November�2013.�

�

3.3 At�its�meeting�on�8�October�2013,�the�Regeneration
of�its�meeting�slots�up�to�and�including�March�2014.





4.
 Issues
for
Consideration


4.1 � The�Committee�is�asked�to�note�proposed�topics�for�the�remainder�of�its�meeting�slots�up�to�and�

� including�March�2014,�as�set�out�below.

• Super-Connected
Cities
Project


to�improve�the�digital�infrastructure�for�London’s�businesses,�particularly�in�East�London.�The�
GLA�expects�to�award�a�contract�for�its�private�sector�partner�in�2013/14�with�work�beginning�

in�2014�and�expected�to�take�15�months�to�complete.

• The
Mayor’s
Regeneration

March�2014�to�assess�the�progress�of

years�after�the�August�2011�disturbances.�The

                                                                     

Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


Regeneration�Committee
Work


Regeneration
Committee



Executive
Director
of
Secretariat Date:
16
Decem

This
report
will
be
considered
in
public 

the�Committee’s�updated�work�programme�for�the�remainder�of�

agrees
its
updated
work
programme
for
the
remainder
of


Annual�Meeting�on�1�May�2013,�the�Committee’s�calendar�of�meeting�dates�for�

he�Regeneration�Committee�agreed�its�priorities�for�the�2013/14�work�programme�at�its�meeting�

agreed�the�topics�for�its�initial�meetings�and�site�visit

At�its�meeting�on�8�October�2013,�the�Regeneration�Committee�agreed�the�topics�for�the�remainder�
of�its�meeting�slots�up�to�and�including�March�2014.


Issues
for
Consideration��

The�Committee�is�asked�to�note�proposed�topics�for�the�remainder�of�its�meeting�slots�up�to�and�
including�March�2014,�as�set�out�below.�

Connected
Cities
Project
-
The�Committee�will�examine�the�progress�of�this�project�

to�improve�the�digital�infrastructure�for�London’s�businesses,�particularly�in�East�London.�The�
to�award�a�contract�for�its�private�sector�partner�in�2013/14�with�work�beginning�

in�2014�and�expected�to�take�15�months�to�complete. 


The
Mayor’s
Regeneration
Fund
(MRF)
–�The�Committee�will�use�its�meeting�in�
the�progress�of�the�MRF�in�supporting�regeneration,�two�and�a�half�

he�August�2011�disturbances.�The�Committee�will�examine�the�projects�in�receipt�

 

Committee
Work


16
December
2013


the�remainder�of�2013/14.��

the
remainder
of
2013/14.


Committee’s�calendar�of�meeting�dates�for�

agreed�its�priorities�for�the�2013/14�work�programme�at�its�meeting�

and�site�visit�up�to�and�including�

Committee�agreed�the�topics�for�the�remainder�

The�Committee�is�asked�to�note�proposed�topics�for�the�remainder�of�its�meeting�slots�up�to�and�

examine�the�progress�of�this�project�

to�improve�the�digital�infrastructure�for�London’s�businesses,�particularly�in�East�London.�The�
to�award�a�contract�for�its�private�sector�partner�in�2013/14�with�work�beginning�

use�its�meeting�in���������
the�MRF�in�supporting�regeneration,�two�and�a�half�

Committee�will�examine�the�projects�in�receipt�

Agenda Item 6

Page 69



        

of�funding,�whether�the�fund�is�delivering�value�for�money;�what�will�influence�decision�

making�over�how�unspent�funding�is�used,�and�lay�out�the�lessons�that�can�be�learnt�from�the�

performance�of�the�fund�to�ensure�any�future�funding�is�used�effectively.�To�inform�this�
meeting,�the�Committee�will�use�its�February�meeting�slot,�plus�an�additional�slot�on��������������

13�February�2014,�to�conduct�site�visits�to�Tottenham�and�Croydon�to�learn�how�the�MRF�is�

being�used.�

4.2 The�proposed�timetable�for�upcoming�Committee�meetings�and�site�visits�is�set�out�below.�The�order�

of�the�topics�is�indicative;�this�may�change�during�the�year�and�any�changes�will�be�reflected�in�

future�work�programme�reports:


Date
 Main
item
of
business


Tuesday�28�January�2014� Super-Connected�Cities�

Thursday�13�February�2014� Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund�site�visit�1�

Thursday�27�February�2014� Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund�site�visit�2�

Tuesday�18�March�2014� Mayor’s�Regeneration�Fund��

4.3 Topics�for�discussion�later�in�the�year�will�be�set�out�in�future�agenda�papers,�following�consultation�
with�Members.��





5.
 Legal
Implications



5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.






6.
 Financial
Implications

�
6.1� There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�
�
�
�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:

None.��

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�
�

Contact�Officer:� Jo�Sloman,�Scrutiny�Manager��

Telephone:� 020�7983�4942�
E-mail:� jo.sloman@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 70


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1
	Minutes - Transcript - Appendix 2

	4 Summary List of Actions
	Summary List of Actions - Appendix 1

	5 Outer London Fund
	Appendix 1 -  Summary - Regeneration Committee OLF site visit

	6 Regeneration Committee Work Programme

